Public Document Pack

T™ILLINGDON

LONDON
Central & SOUth To Councillors on the Committee
P la NN1N g Councillor lan Edwards (Chairman)
. Councillor David Yarrow (Vice-Chairman)
CO mmi ttee Councillor Shehryar Ahmad-Wallana
Councillor Roy Chamdal
Date: TUESDAY, 16 MAY 2017

Councillor Alan Chapman
Time: 7.00 PM Councillor Jazz Dhillon
Councillor Janet Duncan

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 - _ 4
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH Councillor Manjit Khatra
STREET, UXBRIDGE UBS8 Councillor Brian Stead
1UW

Meeting Members of the Public and
Details: Press are welcome to attend
this meeting

Published: Monday, 8 May 2017

Contact: Anisha Teji
Tel: 01895 257655
Email: ateji@hillingdon.gov.uk

This Agenda is available online at:
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cld=123&Year=0

Putting our residents first

Lloyd White

Head of Democratic Services

London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW
www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Useful information for
residents and visitors

Watching & recording this meetin _

g g g Watch a [®)73d broadcast of this
You can watch the public (Part 1) part of this meeting meeting on the Council's YouTube
on the Council's YouTube channel, live or archived Channel: Hillingdon London
after the meeting. Residents and the media are also
welcome to attend in person, and if they wish, report Zhose fllttslrl\?ilng shguld bed aware tf;}t the

H H H H OunNCil WIll TitmM and recorad proceeaings

on the, pu.bllc part of the mee_tmg' Any mgllwdual or for both official record and resident digital
organisation may record or film proceedings as long engagement in democracy.
as it does not disrupt proceedings.

It is recommended to give advance notice of filming to ensure any particular requirements can be
met. The Council will provide seating areas for residents/public, high speed WiFi access to all
attending and an area for the media to report. The officer shown on the front of this agenda should
be contacted for further information and will be available to assist.

When present in the room, silent mode should be enabled for all mobile devices.

Travel and parking i ]

Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, with

0
the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a short wa \,)/>
away. Limited parking is available at the Civic 1 Unbridg

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at the %&Ega ﬁ

Centre. For details on availability and how to book rube and b

. . . Paviligns ™
parking space, please contact Democratic Service shogging sagions <
Please enter from the Council’s main reception Centre / r—LJ Intu =

where you will be directed to the Committee Roon

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda
please contact Democratic Services. For those
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is
available for use.

Mizinning

car park

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarn
EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt.
Fire Marshal or Security Officer. In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs,
should make their way to the signed refuge locations.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings

Security and Safety information

Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the
fire alarm will sound continuously. If there is a
SECURITY INCIDENT follow the instructions issued
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshall or a Security
Officer.

Mobile telephones - Please switch off any mobile
telephones before the meeting.

Petitions and Councillors

Petitions - Those who have organised a petition of
20 or more people who live, work or study in the
borough, can speak at a Planning Committee in
support of or against an application. Petitions
must be submitted in writing to the Council in
advance of the meeting. Where there is a
petition opposing a planning application there is
also the right for the applicant or their agent to
address the meeting for up to 5 minutes.

Ward Councillors - There is a right for local
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members - The planning committee is
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet
in public every three weeks to make decisions on
applications.

How the Committee meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the most
complex and controversial proposals for
development or enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as
householder extensions are generally dealt with
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated
powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises reports on each application

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at
the beginning of the meeting.

The procedure will be as follows:-

1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a
presentation of plans and photographs;

3. If there is a petition(s), the petition organiser
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant
followed by any Ward Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the

petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek
clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the
recommendation in the report, or on an
alternative recommendation put forward by a
Member of the Committee, which has been
seconded.

About the Committee’s decision

The Committee must make its decisions by
having regard to legislation, policies laid down
by National Government, by the Greater London
Authority - under ‘The London Plan’ and
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and
supporting guidance. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning
considerations and case law and material
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s
report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee
must conduct themselves when dealing with
planning matters and when making their
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s
Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee
cannot take into account issues which are not
planning considerations such a the effect of a
development upon the value of surrounding
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself
is not sufficient ground for refusal of
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to
the design of the property. When making a
decision to refuse an application, the Committee
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for
refusal based on material planning
considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application,
the applicant has the right of appeal against the
decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the
Government will then consider the appeal.
There is no third party right of appeal, although
a third party can apply to the High Court for
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

Chairman's Announcements

1 Apologies for Absence

2  Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

3  To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting 1-6
4  Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent
5

To confirm that the items of business marked Part | will be considered in
Public and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private

PART | - Members, Public and the Press

Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the
Chairman may vary this. The name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the
address of the premises or land concerned.

Applications with a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
6 | 31 Morello Avenue, Brunel Conversion of single family 7-16
Hillingdon dwelling into six-bedroom House
in Multiple Occupation (HMO) | 78-81
72026/APP/2017/1064 (Retrospective).

Recommendation: Refusal

7 | 1 Normans Close, Brunel Two two-storey, four-bed dwellings 17 -34
Hillingdon with  associated parking and
amenity space, wall / fence to| 82-89
62184/APP/2016/4117 front, and installation of two

vehicular crossovers, involving
demolition of existing bungalow.

Recommendation: Approval




8 | 12 Grove Way, Uxbridge Two-storey side extension, single- | 35 -44
Uxbridge North storey rear extension, conversion
of roof space to habitable use to | 90- 108
71844/APP/2017/329 include three rear rooflights and
one side rooflight and porch to
front.
Recommendation: Approval
Applications without a Petition
Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
9 | 10 Clayton Road, Botwell Change of use from retail (Use | 45-56
Hayes Class A1) to car hire / mini cab
office (Sui Generis). 109 - 114
72438/APP/2016/4505

Recommendation: Approval

PART Il - MEMBERS ONLY

The reports listed below are not made public because they contain confidential or

exempt information under paragraph 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12 A to the Local

Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

10 ENFORCEMENT REPORT

11  ENFORCEMENT REPORT

57 - 68
69 - 76

PART | - Plans for Central and South Planning Committee 77 - 114




This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes

Agenda ltem 3

HILLINGDON

LONDON

CENTRAL & South Planning Committee

12 April 2017

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

Committee Members Present:
Councillors lan Edwards (Chairman), David Yarrow (Vice-Chairman), Shehryar Ahmad-
Wallana, Alan Chapman, Jazz Dhillon, Janet Duncan, Manjit Khatra and Brian Stead

LBH Officers Present:

James Rodger - Head of Planning and Enforcement
Meghji Hirani - Planning Contracts & Planning Information
Alan Tilly - Transport & Aviation Manager

Nicole Cameron - Planning Lawyer

Neil Fraser - Democratic Services Officer

238. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)
None.

239. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING
(Agenda Item 2)
None.

240. | TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda
Item 3)
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 21 March 2017 be agreed
as a correct record.

241. | MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Item
4)
The Chairman confirmed that items 12 & 13 had been added to the agenda as urgent
items.

242. | TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART | WILL BE

CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 5)

It was confirmed that agenda items 1-9 and 12-13 were marked as Part | and would be
considered in public. Agenda items 10 & 11 were marked as Part Il and so would be
considered in private.

Page 1




243.

CHERRY YARD (SOUTH), HOLLOWAY FARM,HARMONDSWORTH ROAD -
2688/APP/2016/4029 (Agenda Item 6)

Temporary Change of use of land from a commercial plant growing area to car
parking for staff for 5 years (Retrospective)

Officers introduced the report, confirming that the building and use were commercial in
character and were in conflict with the fundamental aims of Green Belt Policy, and no
special circumstances had been provided to overcome the presumption of
inappropriate development in the Green Belt. It was therefore recommended that
approval be refused.

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded, and when put to a vote,
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be refused.

244.

HOLLOWAY FARM, HARMONDSWORTH ROAD - 2688/APP/2016/3948 (Agenda
Item 7)

Change of use of land from garden centre/nursery to a vehicle maintenance area
involving erection of workshop and demolition of glass house and poly tunnels
(Retrospective)

Officers introduced the report, confirming that the building and use were commercial in
character and were in conflict with the fundamental aims of Green Belt Policy, and no
special circumstances had been provided to overcome the presumption of
inappropriate development in the Green Belt. It was therefore recommended that
approval be refused.

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded, and when put to a vote,
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be refused.

245.

5, GRANVILLE ROAD - 1404/APP/2017/271 (Agenda Item 8)

Conversion of existing dwelling to 1 x 1 bedroom and 1 x 2 bedroom self
contained flats

Officers introduced the report, confirming that there were two main issues for the
Committee to consider. Firstly, that the proposed indoor living area was of insufficient
size for the occupiers of the first and second floor flats. Secondly, the proposal had not
provided sufficient parking provision to comply with the Council's approved car parking
standard. For these reasons it was recommended that the application be refused.

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded, and when put to a vote,
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be refused.

Page 2




246.

16 IVER LANE - 22813/APP/2016/4577 (Agenda ltem 9)

Part two storey, part single storey side/rear extension and conversion of roof
space to habitable use to include 1 rear dormer

Officers introduced the report, confirming that standards set out in the Supplementary
Planning Document on residential extensions required that two storey side extensions
be set at least one metre from the boundary of the property, for the full height of the
building. In this instance, the ground floor was not set back from the boundary line at
all.

In addition, whilst the proposal was for a first floor extension, it was confirmed that the
structure at the side of the property was not sturdy enough to support the weight of the
proposed extension, and so would need to be demolished, resulting in additional
ground floor construction.

The addendum was highlighted, which set out comments made by the agent in relation
to previous developments at No. 21 lver Lane, which the agent felt to be a comparable
scheme. In response, the officer confirmed that, as No. 21 was located at a junction,
the issue of terracing and/or the infilling of a gap between properties was not a
concern. In addition, previous two storey and side/front extensions at No. 21 had been
carried out prior to the adoption of the Council's current standards, and the roof works
were allowed as part of permitted development. As such, it was not felt that this was
comparable to the proposal for 16 Iver Lane, and refusal of the application was
recommended.

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded, and when put to a vote,
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be refused.

247.

ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda Item 10)
RESOLVED:

1. That the enforcement action as recommended in the officer’s report was
agreed.

2. That the Committee resolved to release their decision and the reasons for it
outlined in this report into the public domain, solely for the purposes of
issuing the formal breach of condition notice to the individual concerned.

This item is included in Part Il as it contains information which a) is likely to reveal the
identity of an individual and b) contains information which reveals that the authority
proposes to give, under an enactment, a notice under or by virtue of which
requirements are imposed on a person. The authority believes that the public interest in
withholding the Information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it (exempt
information under paragraphs 2 and 6(a) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended).

Page 3




248.

ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda Item 11)
RESOLVED:

1. That the enforcement action as recommended in the officer’s report was
agreed.

2. That the Committee resolved to release their decision and the reasons for it
outlined in this report into the public domain, solely for the purposes of
issuing the formal breach of condition notice to the individual concerned.

This item is included in Part Il as it contains information which a) is likely to reveal the
identity of an individual and b) contains information which reveals that the authority
proposes to give, under an enactment, a notice under or by virtue of which
requirements are imposed on a person. The authority believes that the public interest in
withholding the Information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it (exempt
information under paragraphs 2 and 6(a) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended).

249.

LESSER BARN, HUBBARDS CLOSE - 5971/APP/2016/3922 (Agenda ltem 12)

Rebuilding of existing barn with internal and external alterations to create two
three-bedroom dwellings with associated parking and landscaping

Officers introduced the report, confirming that the application had been considered at
the Central & South Planning Committee meeting held on 21 March 2016, where it had
been deferred so that the legal position relating to a Listed Building Consent (ref.
5971/APP/2013/1839), that was linked to an expired application, could be clarified.

The associated Listed Building Consent, ref. 5971/App/2013/1839, for the
reconstruction of the Grade |l Listed Lesser Barn was approved by the Committee in
November 2014, subject to a Section 106 agreement, which had not yet been
completed. As such, the Listed Building Consent had not been formally granted.

The description of the associated Listed Building Consent, ref. 5971/App/2013/1839,
had since been amended to refer to this current application, removing reference to the
expired 2012 approved application. The two linked applications were therefore now
brought to the Committee for authorisation.

The proposal was to reinstate the original barn as it was prior to its collapse. To this
end, much of the original timbers had been saved for re-use. The dwellings and parking
provision complied with all required standards, and the impact on adjoining properties
was considered acceptable. It was confirmed that the application had not materially
changed in comparison to the scheme approved in 2014. The application was therefore
recommended for approval.

The addendum was highlighted, which confirmed that a petition of 28 signatures had
been received in support of the application.

The Head of Planning requested that delegated authority be granted to add a standard
informative relating to the community infrastructure levy, should the Committee be
minded to approve the application.

The petitioner, (also the agent acting on behalf of the applicant), addressed the

Page 4




Committee, confirming that the site had been the subject of several approvals and
approval recommendations over a number of years. It was regrettable that previous
owners of the site had failed to perform, resulting in the barn subsequently collapsing.
The new owner, having now acquired the site, had the funding in place to ensure the
repair and restoration of the remaining timbers and to implement the development.

Following conversations with Hillingdon officers, the applicant had instructed specialist
contractors to take steps to protect the timbers from further deterioration, and the draft
Section 106 had now been agreed by both parties, awaiting final sign-off. However,
due to the length of time the applications had been awaiting determination, the
applicant was in danger of losing the funding required, and as such, the applications
had been brought to the Committee as urgent items. The petitioner concluded by
urging the Committee to approve the application, in line with previous determinations.

The Chairman confirmed that, as Ward Councillor for Yiewsley, he welcomed the
proposal, and felt that it was an attractive development that would retain local heritage.

Members were supportive of the proposal, noting that it mirrored previously approved
applications, and with this in mind the officer's recommendation was moved. This was
seconded and, when put to a vote, unanimously agreed,

RESOLVED:

1. That the application be approved; and
2. That the Head of Planning be delegated authority to agree an additional
informative relating to the community infrastructure levy.

250.

LESSER BARN, HUBBARDS CLOSE - 5971/APP/2013/1839 (Agenda ltem 13)

Dismantling of existing farm outbuilding and reconstruction to accord with
planning application ref: 5971/APP/2016/3922 (Rebuilding of existing barn with
internal and external alterations to create two three-bedroom dwellings with
associated parking and landscaping) (Application for Listed Building Consent).

It was understood that the application was linked to ref. 5971/APP/2016/3922, which
had been deliberated earlier in the meeting. The officer's recommendation was moved,
seconded, and when put to a vote, unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved.

ADDENDUM

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 7.26 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Neil Fraser on 01895 250692. Circulation of these minutes
is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Pubilic.

The public part of this meeting was filmed live on the Council's YouTube

Channel to increase transparency in decision-making, however these minutes
remain the official and definitive record of proceedings.

Page 5




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Agenda ltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 31 MORELLO AVENUE HILLINGDON

Development: Conversion of single family dwelling into 6 bedroom House in Multiple
Occupation (HMO) (Retrospective)

LBH Ref Nos: 72026/APP/2017/1064

Drawing Nos: MA PA 01 Rev. £
MA PA 03 Rev. /

Date Plans Received: 23/03/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 23/03/2017
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks retrospective planning permission for the conversion of the house
into a 6 bedroom House in Multiple Occupation (HMO). Whilst the proposal would not
constitute an over-concentration of HMO or sui generis uses in the area in accordance
with the Interim Planning Policy Document, the layout of the accommodation would fail to
provide a satisfactory residential environment for the future occupants of the HMO given
that the communal kitchen/diner would achieve very poor levels of outlook and light and
would also result in an overintensive use of the site to the detriment of the amenities of
adjoining occupiers. Furthermore the proposal would create unacceptable demand for
parking, which cannot adequately be provided within the application site.

2. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal would fail to provide a satisfactory residential environment for the future
occupants of the HMO given that the communal kitchen/diner would achieve very poor
levels of outlook and light. The proposal is therefore contrary to Mayor of London's
Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016), Policies BE19 and
BE20 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance Houses in Multiple Occupation
(2004).

2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal would provide insufficient parking provision for the proposed use and would
therefore result in an increase in on-street car parking in an area where such parking is at
a premium thereby leading to conditions which would be detrimental to the free flow of
traffic and to highway and pedestrian safety. The proposal is, therefore, contrary to
Policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Unitary
Development Plan Policies (November 2012), the Council's Supplementary Planning
Guidance: Houses in Multiple Occupation and other non-self contained housing and the
Interim Planning Policy - Houses In Multiple Occupation In The Uxbridge South And Brunel
Wards (May 2013).

3 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal
The proposal would result in an overintensive use of the site to the detriment of the

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 7



residential amenities of adjoining occupiers by reason of noise and disturbance. Therefore
the proposal would be contrary to policies BE19, BE21 and OE3 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the Council's adopted
upplementary Planning Guidance Houses in Multiple Occupation (2004).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated
with alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.
BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. The
Council's supports pre-application discussions.

We have however been unable to seek solutions to problems arising from the application

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 8



as the principal of the proposal is clearly contrary to our statutory policies and negotiation
could not overcome the reasons for refusal.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application property comprises of a two storey semi-detached house located on the
North Western side of Morello Avenue which lies within the Developed Area as identified
within the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). The property has
been recently extended by way of a flat roofed single storey rear extension projecting 4m to
the rear. The property was unoccupied at the time of the site visit.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks retrospective planning permission for the conversion of the house
into a 6 bedroom House in Multiple Occupation (HMO).

3.3 Relevant Planning History

72026/APP/2016/2469 31 Morello Avenue Hillingdon

Erection of a single storey rear extension, which would extend beyond the rear wall of the origin
house by 4 metres, for which the maximum height would be 3.5 metres, and for which the heigh
of the eaves would be 3 metres

Decision: 25-07-2016 PRN

Comment on Relevant Planning History

72026/APP/2016/2469 - Prior approval for the erection of a single storey rear extension,
which would extend beyond the rear wall of the original house by 4 metres, for which the
maximum height would be 3.5 metres, and for which the height of the eaves would be 3
metres. Approved and implemented.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 9



BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.
LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

5 neighbouring properties were consulted by letter dated 28.3.17 and a site notice was displayed to
the front of the site which expired on 27.4.17.

2 letters of objection and a petition with 67 signatories have been received raising concerns relating
to the inadequate parking provision and the increased demand on the drainage system resulting
from the increased number of bathrooms and residents.

Internal Consultees

HMO Officer: No registered HMO's within vicinity but it is understood that there are a number of
unregistered HMO's nearby.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The site is located within an area covered by an Article 4 Direction that removes permitted
development rights for the conversion of residential properties to Houses in Multiple
Occupation without planning permission. The Council's 'Houses in Multiple Occupation in
the Uxbridge South and Brunel Wards' Planning Policy Document recognises that higher
education institutions and the student population form an important element of the
community and the presence of a large student population contributes greatly to the social
vibrancy of Uxbridge and the local economy.

The Council are committed to ensuring student needs are met and will continue to work
with Hillingdon's higher education institutions in addressing student housing needs.
However, it is also recognised that concentrations of student households, often
accommodated in HMOs, can cause imbalances in the local community which can have
negative effects. These negative effects can include a rise in anti-social behaviour,
increases in crime levels, parking pressures, general increase in demand for local shops
such as takeaway establishments, off licenses etc. It can also put pressures on family and
starter housing as owner occupiers and buy to let landlords compete for similar properties.

It also has implications for non-students seeking accommodation in the private rented
sector. The introduction of the Article 4 Direction to remove permitted development rights
for the conversion of properties enables future monitoring of the spatial distribution and
impacts of student housing and other HMOs and will allow the Council to identify if it is
necessary to prevent an increase in the number of student households and other HMOs in

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 10



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

certain areas to ensure communities retain a satisfactory mix of households.

Policy HM1 The Council's 'Houses in Multiple Occupation in the Uxbridge South and Brunel
Wards' Planning Policy Document states that:

'Applications for the change of use from dwelling house (Use Class C3) to HMO (Use
Class C4 and Sui Generis) will only be permitted where:

- It is in a neighbourhood output area where less than 20% of properties are exempt from
paying council tax because they are entirely occupied by full time students or recorded on
the Council's database as an HMO or benefit from C4/Sui Generis HMO planning consent
or are known to the Council to be HMO's (based on the Councils annual survey data) or

- Less than 15% of properties outside Conservation Areas, or 5% in Conservation Areas,
within 100 metres of a street length either side of an application property are exempt from
paying council tax because they are entirely occupied by full time students or recorded on
the Council's database as an HMO or benefit from C4/Sui Generis HMO planning consent
or are known to the Council to be HMOs; and

- The accommodation complies with all other planning standards relating to car parking,
waste storage, retention of amenity space and garages and will not have a detrimental
impact upon the residential amenity of adjoining properties.'

It is noted that there are no other Registered HMOs within a 100 metres distance of the
current proposal. Policy HM1 of the Interim Planning Policy Document (May 2013) states
planning permission will only be granted where less than 15% of properties outside
Conservation Areas, within 100 metres of a street length either side of an application
property are exempt from paying Council tax because they are entirely occupied by full time
students or recorded on the Council's database as an HMO or benefit from C4/Sui Generis
HMO planning consent or are known to the Council to be HMOs.

The application property is located on the North Western side of Morello Avenue. There are
12 properties within a distance of 100m to the South West of the application site, of which
none are recorded as HMQ's. There are 12 properties to the North East which are not
recorded as HMO's. As such the proposal would not result in an over-concentration of
such uses as outlined in policy HM1.

Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Furthermore policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) resist any development
which would fail to harmonise with the existing street scene or would fail to safeguard the
design of existing and adjoining sites.

The proposal does not propose any external alterations to the property and is considered

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 11



acceptable in this respect.
7.08 Impact on neighbours

The application proposes no extensions to the building and is solely for a change of use
which seeks permission for an HMO use. Morello Avenue, in the main, comprises modestly
sized semi-detached dwellings, where the impact of a large HMO would be exacerbated
more than in other suburban streets where there is less dense development.

The proposal would provide 5 double and 1 single bedroom resulting in the potential for 11
unrelated individuals to live together sharing basic amenities such as a kitchen and a
bathroom. It is considered that the number of residents proposed within the building would
be substantially more than if a large family were to occupy the dwelling and therefore the
impact on neighbouring occupiers, in terms of vehicle movements, movements of
residents at all times of the day and night and consequently noise and disturbance would
be greater than could reasonably be expected if the property were occupied by a family and
thus the proposal is considered, on balance to have an unacceptable and undue impact on
existing residential amenity and the proposal would therefore be contrary to Policies BE19,
BE21 and OE3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Policies (November 2014).
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

NTERNAL FLOOR AREA

Paragraph 3.5 of the Houses in Multiple Occupation SPD (2004) notes that the suitability of
a property to be an HMO will vary depending on the type of house. For semi detached
houses, the SPG States that Table 4 sets out the maximum recommended occupancy
levels for the conversion of semi-detached dwellings into non self-contained housing. The
Council will normally attach conditions to planning permissions, in order to maintain
occupancy within these levels. HMOs and hostels will also be required to retain at least one
ground floor habitable room over 10 sq.m, other than a kitchen, for communal living
purposes. Regardless of the number and size of additional habitable rooms in an enlarged
semi-detached house, the maximum number of occupants in such properties will be
limited to 9 persons.

The proposed development is seeking change of use to a HMO of 6 bedrooms. The
Houses in Multiple Occupation SPD (2004) sets minimum standards for bedrooms sizes
and requires a minimum of 6.5-10 sq.m of internal space for a 1-person bedroom. The
proposed development comprises bedrooms ranging in size as follows:

Bedroom 1 - 13.6 sq.m (en-suite)
Bedroom 2 - 10.94 sq.m (en-suite)
Bedroom 3 - 10.98 sq.m (en-suite)
Room 4 - 12.5 sq.m (en-suite)
Bedroom 5 - 13.14 sq.m (en-suite)
Bedroom 6 - 6.5 sq.m

The submitted plans also include the provision of a kitchen/dining room measuring 19.5
square metres and a separate first floor bathroom.

Based on the submitted plans, the layout of the bedroom accommodation is compliant with
the HMO SPG in terms of the size of the bedrooms and facilities provided. It is however
noted that In terms of number of people, up to to 11 people could reside in this property
under the Housing Act 2004 and they are listed as follows: Bedroom 1 - 2 people Bedroom
2 - 2 people; Bedroom 3 - 2 people Bedroom 4 - 2 people; Bedroom 5 - 2 people, Bedroom
6 - 1 person.

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 12



7.10

711

7.12

713

714

7.15

The Council's guidance places importance on communal lounges for HMO's. The
submitted plans indicate that the communal living space would comprise of a kitchen/diner
with a small window with an outlook of the neighbouring flank wall being located
approximately 1.5 m away from the boundary fence and 4 m away from the flank brick wall
at Number 31. The proposal would therefore fail to provide a satisfactory residential
environment for the future occupants of the HMO given that the communal kitchen/diner
would achieve very poor levels of outlook and light. The proposal is therefore contrary to
Mayor of London's Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016),
Policies BE19 and BE20 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document Houses
in Multiple Occupation SPG (2004).

The Council's SPG on HMO's requires the provision of 15 square metres of external
amenity space for each habitable room (excluding those used for communal living
purposes). Therefore, the proposed development would be required to provide 90 square
metres of external amenity space. The rear garden provides some 125 square metres and
as such is considered to comply with Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November
2012).

The HMO Officer has indicated that facilities provided for the future occupants of the HMO
are acceptable.
Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Unitary Development Plan
Policies (November 2012) considers whether the ftraffic generated by proposed
developments is acceptable in terms of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic
flows and conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety.

Policy AM14 states that new development will only be permitted where it is in accordance
with the Council's adopted Car Parking Standards. These require a maximum provision of
1 space per two bedrooms

The submitted plans show that there are three parking spaces provided within the frontage.
However the position of the crossover and the parking layout indicates that the 3 spaces
could not be independently accessed. The scheme therefore proposes inadequate
provision of off-street car parking which would be detrimental to the free flow of traffic and
give rise to conditions prejudicial to highway and pedestrian safety. Accordingly, the
scheme is contrary to Policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved Unitary Development Plan Policies (November 2012), the Council's Supplementary
Planning Guidance: Houses in Multiple Occupation and other non-self contained housing
(August 2004) and the Interim Planning Policy - Houses In Multiple Occupation In The
Uxbridge South And Brunel Wards (May 2013).

Urban design, access and security

The issues are addressed in the sections above.
Disabled access

No issues are raised.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Not applicable to this application.
Sustainable waste management

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 13



7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Not applicable to this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

The comments received as a result of the consultation process are addressed in the
sections above.
Planning obligations

Not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Should the application be refused the expediency of enforcement action will need to be
considered by members and would be the subject of a separate report.
Other Issues

Since the end of August 2015 applications which are for development which was not
authorised need to be assessed as to whether the unauthorised development was
intentional. If so, then this is a material planning consideration. In this case officers have no
indication that this was an intentional breach of planning control.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 14



obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks retrospective planning permission for the conversion of the house
into a 6 bedroom House in Multiple Occupation (HMO). Whilst the proposal would not
constitute an over-concentration of HMO or sui generis uses in the area in accordance with
the Interim Planning Policy Document, the layout of the accommodation would fail to
provide a satisfactory residential environment for the future occupants of the HMO given
that the communal kitchen/diner would achieve very poor levels of outlook and light and
would also result in an overintensive use of the site to the detriment of the amenities of
adjoining occupiers. Furthermore the proposal would create unacceptable demand for
parking, which cannot adequately be provided within the application site.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012);

The London Plan (2016);

National Planning Policy Framework;

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance Houses in Multiple Occupation;
Houses in Multiple Occupation in the Uxbridge south and Brunel wards.

Contact Officer: Nicola Taplin Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 15



~

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

31 Morello Avenue

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
72026/APP/2017/1064 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Central & Southc 16 May 2017

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

HILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda ltem 7

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 1 NORMANS CLOSE HILLINGDON MIDDLESEX

Development: Two x two storey, 4-bed dwellings with associated parking and amenity
space, wall/fence to front and installation of two vehicular crossovers,
involving demolition of existing bungalow

LBH Ref Nos: 62184/APP/2016/4117

Drawing Nos: Highway Statement
Location Plan (1:1250)
BPCO001
BPC002
BPC003
LSTO01 (Proposed Side Elevations)
LST001 (Proposed Site Layout)

Date Plans Received: 11/11/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 11/11/2016
Date Application Valid: 22/11/2016
1. SUMMARY

Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) states that development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fail to
harmonise with the existing street scene, and BE19 states the LPA will seek to ensure
that new development within residential areas compliments or improves the amenity and
the character of the area.

The proposal is not considered to have a negative impact upon the visual amenity of the
site or the surrounding area, would not result in a loss of residential amenity to
neighbouring occupiers and would provide a satisfactory level of residential amenity to
future occupiers. It is considered that the provision of off street parking spaces is
acceptable in this location and the proposed crossovers are not considered to detract
from pedestrian or highway safety.

As such the application is recommended for approval.
2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subiject to the following:

1 RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers BPC001, BPC002,
BPCO003, LST001 (Proposed Site Layout) and LST001 (Proposed Side Elevations) and

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 17



shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2015).

3 RES7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces, have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be retained
as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

4 RES6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not be
carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in accordance
with policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

5 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Cycle Storage (for two cycle parking spaces per dwelling)
2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Car Parking Layouts

2.e Hard Surfacing Materials

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 18



seriously damaged or diseased.
4. Schedule for Implementation

5. Other
5.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
5.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13, BE38 and
AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policy 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (2016).

6 RES18 Lifetime Homes/Wheelchair Units

All residential units within the development hereby approved shall be built in accordance
with 'Lifetime Homes' Standards. Further 10% of the units hereby approved shall be
designed and constructed to be fully wheelchair accessible or easily adaptable for
residents who are wheelchair users, as set out in the Council's Supplementary Planning
Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'.

REASON
To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (2016) Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2

7 RES12 No additional windows or doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development)(England)Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with
or without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be
constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved facing 3
Normans Close.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

8 RES13 Obscure Glazing

The side windows at ground and first floor level facing 3 Normans Close shall be glazed
with permanently obscured glass and non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres taken
from internal finished floor level for so long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

9 RES14 Outbuildings, extensions and roof alterations

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development)(England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with
or without modification); no garages, sheds or other outbuildings, nor extensions or roof
alterations to any dwellinghouses hereby approved, shall be erected without the grant of

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 19



further specific planning permission from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To protect the character and appearance of the area and amenity of residential occupiers
in accordance with policies BE13, BE21, BE23 and BE24 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

10 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the
development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed to
delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken to
prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which
shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker
and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime.
The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OE8 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
London Plan (2016) Policy 5.12.

1 RES23 Visibility Splays - Pedestrian

The access for the proposed car parking shall be provided with those parts of 2.4m x
2.4m pedestrian visibility splays which can be accommodated within the site in both
directions and shall be maintained free of all obstacles to the visibility between heights of
0.6m and 2.0m above the level of the adjoining highway.

REASON
In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with policy AM7 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

12 NONSC Non Standard Condition

All residential units within the development hereby approved shall be built in accordance
with Part M4(2) of the Building regulation standards as set out in the Council's adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon.

REASON

To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (2015) Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2.

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 20



INFORMATIVES

1 152

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated with
alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties

and the local area

OE5 Siting of noise-sensitive developments

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.3 (2015) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 5.13 (2015) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.14 (2015) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2015).

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 21



On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

5 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by either
its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application may have to
be submitted. The validity of this planning permission may be challengeable by third
parties if the development results in any form of encroachment onto land outside the
applicant's control for which the appropriate Notice under Article 13 of the Town and
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 has not
been served.

6 15 Party Walls

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:

carry out work to an existing party wall;

build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner and
are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building Control
Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements with the
adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as removing
the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further
information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory
booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Residents Services
Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

7 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override property
rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not empower
you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the owner. If
you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

8 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is a large sized corner plot, located on the Northern side of Normans
Close at the junction between Normans Close and Peel Way. The plot is broadly
rectangular in shape and has a detached bungalow with an integral garage on it. The
property fronts onto Normans Close with the principal front elevation facing South. The
front garden is mainly landscaped with a driveway leading to the garage which provides an
additional parking space. The bungalow is sited more to the East of the large plot closer to
the neighbouring property, no.3 Normans Close and has amenity space, mostly grass, to
all sides with a good sized rear garden.

The street scene is residential in character with two storey properties to the Eastern and
Southern sides as well as on the opposite corner of the junction. The application site lies
within the Developed Area as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic
Policies (November 2012).

Parking restrictions apply between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Friday.The principal
elevation of the existing bungalow and of the two proposed dwellings is almost due South.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application is for the demolition of the existing bungalow and replacement with 2 x two
storey, 4-bed dwellings with associated parking and amenity space. Each property will
have off street parking to the front for two vehicles and the installation of 2 x vehicular
crossovers.

The current scheme has been amended from the original scheme which initially proposed
3 dwellings on the plot.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 23



Comment on Relevant Planning History

There is no planning history associated with this site.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE5 Siting of noise-sensitive developments

OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.3 (2015) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 5.13 (2015) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.14 (2015) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 24



5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

13 neighbours were consulted for a period of 21 days expiring on the 19 January 2016. A site notice
was also erected.

Six individual responses and a petition of 95 signatures received raising the following points:

. Over development of the plot.

. Overcrowding of the site.

. Loss of on street parking in an area of parking stress.

. Lack of amenity space.

. Unacceptable impact on neighbouring properties.

. Layout and density not in keeping with the character of the local area.

. Increasing traffic.

. Detrimental to private life which currently enjoying.

. The Bungalow is like a landmark in the Peel Way Area. It has a beautiful garden area to the side of
its plot which adds character to the Road.

10. The proposal driven by a financial uplift with no thought towards decent living standards resulting
in cramped lifestyle with no garden.

11. General disruption. The proposal will result in extensive building works, multiple lorries delivering
large amounts of materials, in addition to this lots of noise and mess, that could be on every day of
the week.

12. These properties need to be Westerly facing as the properties on the other corners do.

13. Negative impact to the current character of the Street.

14. The Plot does not warrant more than 1 dwelling and the current Bungalow as it stands sits
perfectly on its plot and compliments the outlook of the street.

15. The other houses on Normans Close are much further away from houses on Pield Heath Road
due to both the gardens being deeper.

16. Developer trying to optimise his returns and not giving any consideration to the residential
community.

17. 2 large detached properties going to dominate and overwhelm the plot. Properties are too close
and not in keeping with the existing street scene.

18. The gable of the property nearest to our property (no.3 Normans Close) will be much closer than
the present bungalow. Kitchen window will be facing onto new development causing reduction in
sunlight due to proximity and size of proposed houses.

19. Over dominating by hard-standing fronting the road.

20. Site should only be redeveloped as one dwelling and should only be a bungalow.

21. It is a gross over development and will maximise the negative impact on the physical
environment, the character of the area, the traffic flow and the privacy of the local residents.

22. Will be an obvious direct line of sight and unacceptable intrusion into the private rear gardens of
the following properties; Numbers 3, and 5 Normans Close, Numbers 1, 3 and 5 Peel Way, 205,
207, 209, 211 Pield Heath Road. Contrary to Policy BE24.

23. The addition of driveways shown on the proposal is not keeping with the character of Normans
Close and reviewing the UDP, point H7 is not met by this proposal.

- Other existing corner plots have no access from the street but from the main road, such as
Bradshawe Waye and Saxon Close.

24. Impact on environment and development will have impact on water run off.

O©COoO~NOOOAPRWN -

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 25



25. The hard surfacing and density of this proposal (original scheme was for 3 dwellings), the
removal of green garden space plus the contrast in design to the correlating corners of Bradshawe
Waye, Saxon Close and Benson Close will clearly have a negative impact on the character of the
area.

26. The proposed properties do not meet the needs of the aging population in the borough. Should
be kept as a bungalow.

27. Corresponding corner plots on Peel Way and the corners of Bradshawe Waye, Benson Close
and Saxon Close have semi-detached properties on them. These are designed facing along an
East/West axis so that the invasion of privacy is significantly reduced.

Internal Consultees
TREES AND LANDSCAPE OFFICER:

This site is occupied by a bungalow, located on a relatively spacious plot at the junction of Peel
Road and Norman's Close. The plot has a well kept garden. However, there are no trees or other
landscape features which would constrain development.

COMMENT: This scheme has been amended since my previous comments of 5 December 2016.
The same comments apply, albeit the amended proposal to build two detached houses provides
more satisfactory private garden/external landscape spaces. If the application is recommended for
approval, landscape conditions should be imposed to ensure that the development contributes to the
character and appearance of the area.

RECOMMENDATION: No objection subject to conditions RES9 (parts 1, 2, 5 and 6).
HIGHWAYS OFFICER:

Normans Close is a local road in the Borough road network. It is part of a CPZ that operates 0900-
1700 Monday to Friday. There is an on-street residents parking bay directly outside the property. The
road is subject to parking stress as not all properties have off-street car parking. The existing
property has a vehicular crossover to access a driveway and garage. The site has a PTAL value of 2
(poor) so there will be a strong reliance on private cars for trip making.

The proposals involve demolishing the existing bungalow and erecting 2 x 4 bed houses on the site.
The floor plans show each dwelling with 2 car parking spaces which meets policy requirements. The
proposed access will mean the loss of the on-street residents car parking bay. There will be small
increases in local traffic as a result of the proposed redevelopment of the site but this will not be
significant. There is a shed shown in the rear gardens of each new property which could be used for
two cycle parking spaces per dwelling but | would like the provision of secure covered cycle parking
spaces conditioned. There will need to be conditions applied to any approval relating to visibility
splays.

If approved the applicant will be responsible for all costs associated with changing the Traffic
Management Order that covers the existing residents parking bay along with removing and making
good the bay markings and post. In light of the above comments | have no significant highways
concerns over the proposed application.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The NPPF has a requirement to encourage the effective use of land by re-using land. This
is an existing residential unit set in a spacious corner plot, which is considered to be a
brownfield site.

The site lies within an established residential area where there would be no objection in

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 26



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

principle to the intensification of the residential use of the site, subject to all other material
planning considerations being acceptable, in accordance with all other planning policies.

Given the residential character of the surrounding area, there is no in principle objection to
the development of the site to provide additional residential accommodation, subject to
appropriate density and design, and the proposal being in accordance with all of the
relevant planning policies and supplementary guidance.

Density of the proposed development

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan seeks to ensure that the new development takes into account
local context and character, the design principles in Chapter 7 and public transport
capacity development should optimise housing output for different types of location within
the relative density range shown in Table 3.2. Development proposals which compromise
this policy should be resisted. Table 3.2 states that on sites in urban locations with a Public
Transport Accessibility Level of 2 and average unit sizes of 3.8 - 4.6 habitable rooms,
densities of up to 45-120u/ha or 200-450hr/ha would be appropriate.

The application site has an area of approximately 0.053 ha and would contain 2 dwellings
providing a total of 14 habitable rooms. This results in a density of 38 u/ha or 264 hr/ha.
This proposal therefore broadly falls below the density range envisaged under the London
Plan, however the density ranges set out in the London Plan are not used in the
assessment of schemes of less than 10 units.

Minimum gross internal floor and storage is a further measure of the suitability of the size
of a proposed dweliing. DCLG guidance identifies that 2 storey, 4 bedroom properties for 5
persons should provide a minimum 97 sq m and 3 sq m of inbuilt storage. The proposed
properties comply with this guideline as each dwelling has a total internal floor area of 129
sq m.

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
states that all new developments should achieve a high quality of design in all new
buildings and the public realm contributes to community cohesion and a sense of place.
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that the layout and appearance of new development should "harmonise with the
existing street scene or other features of the area."

The NPPF (2012) notes the importance of achieving design which is appropriate to its
context stating that 'Permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails
to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the
way it functions.'

The area is residential in character and is fairly uniformly laid out, mostly featuring pairs of
dwellings of similar size and design, arranged with similar spacing and plot size
characteristics. Generally most of the dwellings are two storey semi and detached
dwellings under hipped roofs in good size plots. The existing bungalow and application site

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 27



is the only single storey property in the immediate vicinity with the remainder all two storey
dwellings under hipped roofs.

The proposed dwellings are relatively simple in design and uncomplicated, with a footprint
of approximately 76sq m, slightly larger than surrounding properties. The proposed
dwellings measure 10.2m deep by 8m wide, with a hipped roof detail and of a similar height
to the adjacent property. Given the hipped nature of the design and the angle of pitch, it is
considered that the roofs would not appear unduly bulky within the street scene.

To the front is an extending canopy over the front door under a small pitched roof, a feature
not uncharacteristic of the area. To the rear there is a small double storey projection 2m in
depth and 4.5m wide with a hipped roof which sits 1m below the main roof ridge height.
Both plots maintain the existing front building line and are set back from the front boundary
by 6m. Plot two is set back from the side boundary with no.3 Normans Close by 1m. Plot
one is set back 6m from the side boundary adjacent to Peel Way. The site will be enclosed
to the rear and to the corner of Peel Way with a 1.8m timber fence behind which is a
private access alleyway for properties fronting onto Pield Heath Road.

The scheme originally proposed 2 x 3 bedroom semi-detached dwellings and a 1 x 3
bedroom detached dwelling however this was considered unacceptable and over
development of the site, which also raised concerns from residents on the potential
adverse impacts. The existing plot benefits from a well maintained landscaped garden
which is visible from Peel Way, with the existing bungalow set further into the plot towards
the East. The original proposal would have reduced this green open amenity space with the
new detached dwelling sitting much closer to the boundary adjacent to Peel Way. The
proposed scheme has now been amended and, in terms of its siting, design and
appearance the proposal is considered to be in keeping with the character and appearance
of the surrounding area. Therefore the proposal reflects the architectural character and
appearance of the wider area and complies with the requirements of Policy BE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13 and
BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012),
Policies 3.5 and 7.4 of the London Plan (2016) and the adopted Supplementary Planning
Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.
7.08 Impact on neighbours

With regard to the impact of the amenities on the adjoining occupiers, Sections 4.9 of the
SPD HDAS: Residential Layouts, in relation to new dwellings, states all residential
developments and amenity space should receive adequate daylight and sunlight. The
daylight and sunlight available to adjoining properties should be adequately protected.
Where a two or more storey building abuts a property or its garden, adequate distance
should be maintained to overcome possible over-domination.

Whilst plot one has moved closer to the boundary with Peel Way it is still 6m from the
boundary and as such given that the low wall to the front has been maintained, the general
openness of the corner plot will be maintained. The proposed dwelling will also sit 7m from
the rear boundary. There will be a 1.1m separation gap between both the proposed plots
and both will sit on the same building lines front and rear. Plot two is set back 1m from the
boundary line to the neighbouring property no.3 Normans Close with a separation gap of
approximately 4m between the two properties. To the rear, the proposed dwelling on plot
two will sit roughly in line with the neighbouring property with the modest rear projection
furthest away on the opposite side so as not to have any adverse impact on the
neighbouring property. There will be no impingement of any 45 degree sight lines. Given the
siting and distance from adjoining properties, it is considered that the proposed dwellings

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 28



would not result in over dominance, loss of outlook or loss of light to the neighbouring
property. It is noted that there are two windows proposed on the side elevation facing no.3
Normans Close. At ground floor one window serves the cloakroom and on the first floor the
main bathroom. It is recommended that these are conditioned to be obscure glazed and
fixed shut below 1.8m.

The proposed plots are also over 30m from the rear elevations of the properties fronting
onto Pield Heath Road separated by their long gardens, rear outbuildings/garages and the
private access road. To the front of the proposed dwellings the existing corner dwelling at
no.1 Peel Way sits 21m away and whilst concerns have been raised over overlooking and
loss of privacy, it is considered there is sufficient distance, which complies with the
Council's standard, between the proposed dwellings and the surrounding properties so as
not to cause any significant or unacceptable harm. It is considered that the proposed
dwellings would not increase overlooking over and above that already experienced from
adjacent two storey buildings. The impact on the amenities of the neighbouring properties
is therefore considered to be satisfactory.

As such it is considered that the proposal would not result in an un-neighbourly form of
development and complies with the requirements of Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015. The
Mayor of London adopted the new national technical standards through The Housing
Standards (Minor Alterations to the London Plan) in March 2016 and this sets out the
minimum internal floor spaces required for developments in order to ensure that there is an
adequate level of amenity for existing and future occupants.

The standards require that a two storey, 4 bedroom, 6 person dwelling should provide a
gross internal floor area (GIA) of 106sq.m, a 7 person dwelling should provide a gross
internal floor area (GIA) of 115sq.m and an 8 person dwelling should provide a gross
internal floor area (GIA) of 124sq.m.

The proposal is considered to provide three double bedrooms and a single per dwelling and
would thus be 7 person dwellings. The proposed has floor areas of some 130 sq.m which
is in excess of the minimum requirements and therefore is considered acceptable.

It is considered that all the proposed habitable rooms, would have an adequate outlook and
source of natural light, and therefore comply with Policies BE20 and BE21 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) recognises that new residential
buildings should 'provide external amenity space which is sufficient to protect the amenity
of the occupants of the proposed and surrounding buildings'. The adopted Supplementary
Planning Document (SPD) HDAS: Residential Layouts at Paragraph 4.15 recommends
that a 4 bedroom house should provide a minimum of 100sq.m of usable amenity space.

The proposal provides some 110sg.m and 120sqg.m of usable private amenity space for

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



7.10

711

7.12

713

714

7.15

7.16

717

plots one and two respectively which is in excess of the Council's adopted standard. The
proposal therefore complies with policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning
Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Unitary Development Plan
Policies (November 2012) considers whether the traffic generated by the proposed
development is acceptable in terms of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows
and conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety.

Policy AM14 states that new development will only be permitted where it is in accordance
with the Council's adopted Car Parking Standards. These require a provision of 2 spaces
per dwelling.

The proposed dwellings will be served by two parking spaces to the front and retain
adequate landscaping to the front, side and rear. The proposal will creates separate
identical crossovers 5 metre wide to the West to serve the proposed dwellings. Whilst
there have been concerns raised about the installation of these new crossovers, there is
sufficient visibility to ensure that the provision of this crossover would not impact on
highway safety and the Council's Highway Officer has not raised objection to their size or
siting.

The proposed dwellings maintain the existing front building line and maintain a similar level
of set back from the boundary. It is therefore considered there will be no material change in
visibility into or out of the road to that currently existing. Thus in terms of both the number of
parking spaces proposed and highway and pedestrian safety the proposal is considered to
comply with policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:
Residential Layouts.

Urban design, access and security

Secured by Design is now covered by Part Q of the Building Regulations which the
development will be required to accord with.
Disabled access

If the scheme is found acceptable a condition would be recommended to secure the
development was built to M4(2) in accordance with Policy 3.8 ¢ of the London Plan.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Hillingdon Local Plan Part Two Policy BE38 seeks the protection and retention of existing
trees and landscape features of merit and considers where appropriate the provision of
additional landscaping as part of a proposed development. Tthere are no trees or other
landscape features existing on the site and a landscape condition is recommended to
ensure that the development contributes to the character and appearance of the area.
Sustainable waste management

Policy 5.17 of the London Plan requires that all new development provide adequate facilities
for the storage of waste and recycling. This matter is the subject of a condition.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 30



The site is not within a flood zone. However a sustainable water management condition is
recommended.
7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

Issues of property value and return on investments are not material planning
considerations in the assessment of the proposal. If this proposal were deemed
acceptable, it would not set a precedent for other development as all applications are
assessed on their own merit with regard to compliance with planning policy. Also it is not
considered that the increase of one residential unit would significantly impact upon local
services. It is acknowledged that the redevelopment of the site would result in some
disruption from construction works, however this would be for a limited time and hours of
construction works are restricted and controlled by other legislation. Rights of Light are a
civil matter and not a material planning consideration. The other planning issues raised
from the responses are addressed in the main report.
7.20 Planning obligations

The Council's Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule was adopted on 1st
August 2014. The additional habitable floor space created will be chargeable at £95 per
square metre.

The scheme would also be liable for payments under the Community Infrastructure Levy.
On the 1st April 2012 the Mayoral Community Structure Levy came into force. The London
Borough of Hillingdon falls within Charging Zone 2, therefore, a flat rate fee of £35 per
square metre would be required for each net additional square metre added to the site as
part of the development.

The proposal would necessitate the provision of legal agreement to secure a scheme of
works to remove the resident permit bay located on Normans Close. The applicant will
therefore be responsible for all costs associated with changing the Traffic Management
Order that covers the existing residents parking bay along with removing and making good
the bay markings and post.

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
7.22 Other Issues

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 31



the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks planning permission for the demolition of the existing dwelling and
the erection of 2 x two storey, 4-bed, detached dwellings which include a habitable
roofspace and basement with associated parking to the front and the installation of 1 x
vehicular crossover.

The proposal is not considered have a negative impact upon the visual amenity of the site

or the surrounding area, would not result in a loss of residential amenity to neighbouring
occupiers and would provide a satisfactory level of residential amenity to future occupiers.

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 32



It is considered that the provision of 2 off street parking spaces per dwelling is acceptable
in this location and the proposed crossovers are not considered to detract from pedestrian
or highway safety.

As such the application is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

The London Plan (2016)

The Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)

Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Technical Housing Standards - Nationally Described Space Standard

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon

National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Hardeep Ryatt Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 33



Pield Heath
House School

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

1 Normans Close

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
62184/APP/2016/4117 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Central & Soptlye 34 April 2017

LONDON




Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 12 GROVE WAY UXBRIDGE

Development: Two storey side extension, single storey rear extension, conversion of roof
space to habitable use to include 3 rear rooflsights and 1 side rooflight and
porch to front

LBH Ref Nos: 71844/APP/2017/329

Drawing Nos: A109 Rev.
A108 Rev.
A116 Rev.
A115 Rev.
A114 Rev.
A113 Rev.
A112 Rev.
A111 Rev.
A110 Rev.
A118
A107
A106
A105
A104
A103
A102
A101

WWWWWWwWwww

Date Plans Received: 27/01/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 14/02/2017

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1 Site and Locality

The application property comprises of a two storey detached dwelling located in the North
Western corner of Grove Way, a residential cul-de-sac, located within the Developed Area
as identified within the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Grove Way comprises of predominantly two storey semi-detached houses of a similar
age/design as the application property. It is understood that the existing non-protected trees
within the site have been recently felled. The site to the West has recently been cleared in
readiness for the residential development approved under application reference
67544/APP/2011/736 (19-22 Chippendale Waye and car park area to rear of 23-28
Chippendale Waye).

1.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a two storey side extension,
single storey rear extension, conversion of roof space to habitable use to include 3 rear

Central & South Planning Committee - 15th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 35



rooflsights and 1 side rooflight and porch to front.

The application differs from that recently approved in that a single storey rear extension is
proposed and the loft space is shown to be converted into habitable accommodation to
include the insertion of 4 rooflights.

1.3 Relevant Planning History
71844/APP/2016/1589 12 Grove Way Uxbridge

Two storey side/rear extension, single storey rear infill extension and single storey front infill
extension

Decision Date: 01-11-2016 Approved Appeal:
Comment on Planning History

71844/APP/2016/1589 - Two storey side/rear extension, single storey rear infill extension
and single storey front infill extension.

2, Advertisement and Site Notice
2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

3. Comments on Public Consultations

The North Uxbridge Residents Association and 10 neighbouring properties were consulted
by letter dated 24.2.17 and a site notice was displayed to the front of the site on 3 March
2017 which expired on 28.3.17.

A petition and 3 letters of objection have been received raising the following concerns:

1. The recent loss of the trees within the site.

2. The scale, bulk and design of the proposed extension being out of keeping with the street
scene.

3. Concerns raised about the potential use of this property as an HMO.

4. Concerns raised in relation to the impact of the proposal (during construction) on
highway safety given the width of Grove Way.

Officer note: The issues raised by the consultees are addressed in the main report below.

4. UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-
Part 1 Policies:
PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.

Central & South Planning Committee - 15th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 36



BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

HDAS-EXT Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments
5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

The main considerations are the design and impact on the character of the existing
dwelling and the visual amenities of the street scene and surrounding area, the impact
upon the amenities of adjoining occupiers, the provision of adequate amenity for the host
occupiers and car parking provision.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design.

Furthermore, policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) resist any development which would fail to harmonise with the
existing street scene or would fail to safeguard the design of existing and adjoining sites.

Paragraph 5.10 of the Council's adopted HDAS SPD: Residential Extensions (December
2008) specifies that the width and height of a two storey side extension in relation to an
original house should be considerably less than that of the original house and be between
half and two-thirds of the main house width depending on the plot size and character of the
area. The width and height of the proposed two storey side extension would comply with
the HDAS SPD guidance.

Paragraph 5.9 of the HDAS SPD specifies that the design of the roof should follow that of
the existing roof. The existing dwelling is detached, and as such, there is no requirement
for the roof of the side extension to be set lower than the main roof. There is also no
requirement for a set back of a side extension from the front wall of a detached dwelling in
line with guidance in the HDAS SPD.

With regard to single storey rear extensions, Paragraph 3.3 of the HDAS states that they
should be no more than 3.6m deep. Likewise paragraph 3.7 states that such extensions
should be no more than 3.4m in height. This is to ensure that the extension appears
subordinate to the main house.

The proposed side extension and porch is similar to that recently approved in terms of
design and bulk. The rear extension exceeds the maximum height recommended within

Central & South Planning Committee - 15th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 37



the HDAS guidance, by some 320mm. However the extension is considered to relate
satisfactorily to the host dwelling and would not appear as an incongruous addition to the
street scene. Given the extension to the rear of number 10 Grove Way, the extension to the
rear would not result in an unacceptable loss of light or outlook to the occupants of this
property.

It is therefore concluded that the proposed two storey side and rear extensions, single
storey side and rear extensions and front porch, by reason of their design and scale, would
constitute sympathetic and proportionate additions to the existing dwelling, and would
ensure the preservation of its character, appearance and architectural composition and it is
considered that the proposed extensions would not detract from the visual amenities of the
street scene and surrounding area. The proposal would therefore accord with the
objectives of Policy BE1 of the Hilingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies
(November 2012), Policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012) and the guidance contained in the adopted Supplementary
Planning Document (SPD) HDAS: Residential Extensions.

It is considered that the proposed extensions would not result in undue harm to the
residential amenities of the adjacent dwelling at 10 Grove Way or any other neighbouring
properties through overdominance, overshadowing, overlooking, loss of privacy, light
and/or outlook. The 45 degree angle would not be breached from the first floor windows of
number 10 and sufficient separation would be retained between the front facing windows at
number 11. As such, the proposal would not be contrary to Policies BE20, BE22, and
BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

A number of concerns have been raised by occupants of the neighbouring dwelling that the
extended house has the potential to be used as an HMO rather than a single private
dwelling. The resulting extended dwelling would be a large 6-bedroom property, however
this does not in itself mean that the property would be used as an HMO. The applicant has
confirmed that the extended dwelling would be used as a single private dwellinghouse. The
use of the extended property as an HMO could give rise to additional parking demand that
cannot be accommodated on site or on the local road network. It is therefore considered
expedient to impose a condition to restrict the extended property to use as a single family
dwellinghouse within the C3 Use Class.

Concerns have also been raised about the demand for parking within Grove Way and the
potential for an enlarged property creating an increased demand for car parking within this
cul-de-sac. The Council's adopted Parking Standards require that the extended dwelling
provide 2 off street parking spaces. There is sufficient space within the frontage to provide
two off street parking spaces and retain 25% of the frontage as soft landscaping in
accordance with Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

It is considered that all the proposed habitable rooms, and those altered by the extension,
would maintain an adequate outlook and source of natural light, therefore complying with
the Mayor of London's Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March
2016).

Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) seeks the
protection and retention of existing trees and landscape features of merit and considers
where appropriate the provision of additional landscaping as part of a proposed
development. It is noted that a number of trees have recently been removed from the

Central & South Planning Committee - 15th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



application site, which is regrettable. A number of objections have been received from
neighbouring properties raising concerns about the loss of these trees. However, the trees
within the application site were not protected by a Tree Preservation Order and therefore
the owner is not required to seek any form of consent from the Council before undertaking
works on, or removing trees.

In terms of the garden area at least 100 m2 of rear private garden should be retained to
provide adequate amenity space for a five bedroom dwelling. The amenity space remaining
would be approximately 96 sq.m. A refusal based on this small shortfall is unlikely to be
sustained at appeal and thus the provision of amenity space is considered, on balance, to
be acceptable.

The application is recommended for approval.

6. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 HO1 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 HO2 Accordance with approved

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers, A107 Rev. 3, A108
Rev. 3, A109 Rev. 3, A110 Rev. 3, A111 Rev. 3, A112 Rev. 3, A113 Rev. 3, A114 Rev. 3
and A115 Rev. 3.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

3 HO4 Materials

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building and shall thereafter be
retained as such.

REASON

To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed
development does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing building
in accordance with Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012)

4 HO5 No additional windows or doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be constructed

Central & South Planning Committee - 15th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

5 HO10 Front Garden Landscaping

Notwithstanding the details hereby approved a minimum of 25% of the front garden area
shall be soft landscaped (eg.grass or planted beds) for so long as the development
remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities of
the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with Policies BE13, BE38 and
AM14 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007) and
Policy 5.17 of the London Plan (2016).

6 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The development hereby approved shall not be sub-divided to form additional dwelling
units or used in multiple occupation without a further express permission from the Local
Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that the premises remain as a single dwelling until such time as the Local
Planning Authority may be satisfied that conversion would be in accordance with Policy H7
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

INFORMATIVES

Standard Informatives

1 The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

2 The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

Part 1 Policies:
PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.

Central & South Planning Committee - 15th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 40



BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street

scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy

to neighbours.

HDAS-EXT  Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the
approved drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must
be constructed precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any
deviation from these drawings requires the written consent of the Local

Planning Authority.

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches
by either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning
application will have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a
development that results in any form of encroachment.

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the
Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover
such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building
or structure, the extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings,
installation of services, underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape
works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must be given to the
Council's Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for
approval before any building work is commenced. For further information and
advice, contact - Planning, Enviroment and Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension.

Central & South Planning Committee - 15th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 41



When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your
neighbours and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at
any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all
vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby approved
are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the
adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council does have formal powers to
control noise and nuisance under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air
Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information and advice, please
contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street,
Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

7 The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal
agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
- carry out work to an existing party wall;
- build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
- in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining

building.

Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building
owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls.
The Building Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any
necessary agreements with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by
the Council should be taken as removing the necessity for the building owner to
comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further information and advice is to be found
in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM,
available free of charge from the Planning, Enviroment and Community Services
Reception, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8 Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission
does not empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the
specific consent of the owner. If you require further information or advice, you
should consult a solicitor.

9 Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the
hours of 08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours
of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays Bank and Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with
British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public
health nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02,

Central & South Planning Committee - 15th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 42



Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek
prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate
any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working

hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to

adjoining premises.

10 You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the
pavement or public highway. You are further advised that failure to take
appropriate steps to avoid spillage or adequately clear it away could result in
action being taken under the Highways Act.

11 To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction
methods, you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy
resources which do not produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions,
including solar, geothermal and fuel cell systems, and use of high quality
insulation.

12 You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during
construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override
or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made
good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. For further
information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Contact Officer: Nicola Taplin Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 15th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 43



Car Park

Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH

Site boundary OF HILLINGDON

e e : 12 Grove Way Residents Services

or identification purposes only. Planning Section
This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Servi tt tion 47 of th ; . ’

M iy gl Planning Application Ref: Scale:
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act). 71844/APP/2017/329 1:1,250
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date:
© Crown copyright and database A | 201 7
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey ri
ity Central & Sopthe 44 (Y s




Agenda ltem 9

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 10 CLAYTON ROAD HAYES
Development: Change of use from retail (Use Class A1) to car hire/mini cab office (Sui
Generis)

LBH Ref Nos: 72438/APP/2016/4505

Drawing Nos: Block Plan (1:500)
Design and Access Statement
Location Plan (1:1250)
8/clayton road/109/B/ful

Date Plans Received: 16/12/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 09/01/2017
1. SUMMARY

This application seeks planning permission for the change of use of the subject property
from retail (Use Class A1) to car hire/mini cab office (Sui Generis).

The proposal would not compromise the viability or vitality of the town centre and would
have an acceptable impact on the amenity of adjoining occupiers.

This application does not seek consent for the display of any related advertisements or
signage, which would have to be considered under any separate future application.

Accordingly, the application is recommended for approval.
2. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
2 CcOom4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plan, number 8/clayton
road/109/B/full and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development
remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2015).

3 COM21 Sound insulation /mitigation
The development shall not begin until a scheme for the control of noise transmission to

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 45



the adjoining dwellings has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Thereafter, and prior to the use hereby approved commencing, the
scheme shall be implemented and maintained in full compliance with the approved
measures.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with
policy OE1 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

4 NONSC Non Standard Condition

No waiting area for customers shall be provided at the premises. The use hereby
permitted shall be limited to the provision of an administrative base for a car hire
operation, where neither customers or drivers attend the premises.

REASON
In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with policy AM7 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

5 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Within 2 months of the date of this consent, the applicant shall submit a Management Plan
for the operation of the approved mini-cab business for approval to the Council. The
Management Plan shall include details of physical and

administrative measures to control the following:

Parking measures to reduce on-street parking related to the business;

Arrangements for pick up and drop off of passengers from the vicinity of the minicab office
in Station Road;

Servicing, refuse storage and disposal;

Approach to equity of access and mobility;

Noise prevention and mitigation within the site; and

Measures to ensure best endeavours are used to control anti-social behaviour within the
site.

Thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
Management Plan.

REASON

To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 201) and the London Plan (2016).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 46



AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE26 Town centres - design, layout and landscaping of new buildings

BE28 Shop fronts - design and materials

S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping
areas

OEA1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures

NPPF2 NPPF - Ensuring the vitality of town centres

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2015).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

5

The applicant is hereby advised that this permission does not authorise the display of
advertisements or signs, separate consent for which may be required under the Town and
Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) Regulations 1992 [To display an
advertisement without the necessary consent is an offence that can lead to prosecution].
For further information and advice, contact - Residents Services, 3N/04, Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250574).

6 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be

carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 47



Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk) to seek prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution
Act 1974 if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out the works other than within the
normal working hours set out above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to
adjoining premises. For further information and advice, contact the Environmental
Protection Unit, 3S/02 Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, Middlesex UB8 1UW (tel.
01895 250155).

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the Southern side of Clayton Road and comprises a
ground floor property in a mid-terraced building.

The application property is presently vacant, and its last known established use was a retail
unit (Jessys's Aquarium), which incorporated the sale of fish and sea creatures. Clayton
Road has ground floor commercial uses and office/residential uses on the upper floors and
lies within Hayes Town Centre, although it does not have any designated frontages nor is it
located within a shopping area as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One -
Strategic Policies (November 2012)

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for a change of use from from retail (Use Class
A1) to a taxi control office (Sui Generis).

The proposed mini-cab office would be operated by 1 employee at a time (in total 3
employees working 8 hour shifts), 24 hours a day and 7 days a week. The applicant has
confirmed that no minicabs or cars would be stationed at the premises and that no waiting
area will be provided for customers.Customers would be collected from Blyth Road Car
Park, in the nearby vicinity. The proposal does not involve external alterations and the
internal accommodation is proposed to be rearranged to provide an office, kitchenette and
WC.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History

None.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 48



UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE26 Town centres - design, layout and landscaping of new buildings

BE28 Shop fronts - design and materials

S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping areas

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

NPPF2 NPPF - Ensuring the vitality of town centres

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees
22 neighbouring properties were consulted by letter on 11.01.17

1 response was received as follows:

- limited parking.
- problems with Taxi's using nearby car park.
- drivers will cause anti-social behaviour.

Ward Councillor:

The applicant has been in to see me, he knows all about the parking problems in the area, he only
has 2 drivers at present both who live nearby and park on their own property waiting for work to
come in. He also assures me that should he extend his workforce in the future they will of course be
parking either at their own properties nearby or in one of the local car parks. He is also TFL licensed
and has public insurance.

Internal Consultees

Highways Officer:
The proposal includes the change of use of the premises on 10 Clayton Road from Use Class A1
(Shops) to Sui Generis to be used as a taxi business. The supplied proposed drawing does not

show a waiting area for customers and the supplied Design and Access Statement specifies that
the business would be conducted over the phone and taxi drivers tracked through a GPS system.

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 49



On-street parking around the premises is restricted through single and double yellow lines, together
with pay & display parking bays operating Mon-Sat 8 am-5 pm. There is no space within the
premises or outside the premises for a taxi parking or pick up/drop off area. In light of the nature of
the business, these facilities should not be necessary as taxis would be tracked by GPS and
communication with customer and taxi drivers would occur by telephone. As a result, there are no
objections to the proposals on highway grounds, subject to the following conditions being imposed to
the planning consent:

No waiting area for customers shall be provided at the premises.

No vehicles associated with the premises and its business operations shall be allowed to park in the
adjoining streets.

Planning officer comment; planning conditions have to meet certain tests, and cannot be used to
restrict parking on nearby streets that is the purview of other legislation. The restriction on the
waiting area can be controlled by planning condition.

EPU: No objections.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Policy S6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
specifies that changes of use applications will be granted where i) a frontage of a design
appropriate to the surrounding area is maintained or provided; ii) the use would be
compatible with neighbouring uses and will not cause unacceptable loss of amenity to
nearby residential properties; and iii) would have no harmful effect on road safety or worsen
traffic congestion.

As the site is not within a designated frontage, or shopping parade, there is no presumption
against the loss of retail.

There are no external alterations proposed to the shop front as part of this application, and
therefore the proposal would not affect the visual amenity. The applicant has shown
signage on the fascia, however this will need to be the subject of a separate application.

The site is located on the periphery of the main town centre and would serve adjoining and
neighbouring uses. The neighbouring uses comprise commercial uses and it is considered
that the use would be compatible with these town centre uses.

The neighbouring residential uses would not be unduly harmed, despite the 24 hours
operation, as the unit would be manned by a single member of staff. Furthermore, the
drivers would not park or pick up customers outside of the premises. It is considered that
the use of conditions would prevent any undue loss of amenity.

No objections have been raised with regards to highways, subject to the imposition of a
condition to prevent drivers parking or picking up from adjacent to the premises.

The proposed conversion of the retail unit to a Sui Generis use will not conflict with the
objectives of Policies S6. The site is located within the boundaries of the designated Hayes
Town Centre, however it is not located within either the primary or secondary shopping
areas and thus the loss of a retail unit is considered acceptable in this location.

Given the above considerations, the proposal would comply with the criteria listed in Policy

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 50



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

S6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The proposed development does not involve any alterations to the existing shop front.

An informative is recommended to inform the applicant that any approval does not confer
consent for the advertisement/signage shown on the proposed plan, and that consent for
the display of any related advertisements or signage would have to be considered under a
separate application.

Subiject to the above, it considered that the proposal is in compliance with Policy BE13 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
Impact on neighbours

The proposed change of use would not result in any overall increase of the internal floor
space/footprint area of the property, therefore the built form would not cause any loss of
amenity to adjoining occupiers.

In order to protect the residential occupants above from noise generation, a condition to
secure such details is recommended to protect residential amenity of the occupiers at first
floor level by way of providing adequate noise insulation.

The applicant has indicated that the proposal is for a 24 hour operation. However, it has
also been stated that only one person would be on the premises at any one time and that
there would not be any drivers/customers coming to the site. Given the scale and nature of
the use proposed, it is considered that the proposal would not result in any adverse noise
nuisance to neighbouring properties. It should be noted that the Environmental Protection
Unit have not raised any objections to the proposed change of use nor have they
suggested that there should be a condition restricting hours of use.

The proposal is therefore considered to be acceptable in terms of its impact on the
residential amenity of the adjoining occupiers, in compliance with Policies OE1 and OE3 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this application.
Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Unitary Development Plan
Policies (November 2012) considers whether the traffic generated by proposed
developments is acceptable in terms of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic
flows and conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety.

Policy AM14 states that new development will only be permitted where it is in accordance
with the Council's adopted Car Parking Standards.

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 51



711

7.12

713

714

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

The proposed use of the site would result in there being only one person being on site at
any one time.

The proposal does not make provision for car parking for either staff or visitors. However,
given the low level of occupancy and the fact that the existing use of the site as retail would
have similar parking requirements, it is considered that the proposal would not result in an
increase in parking demand over and above the existing use.

The immediate locality of the site has a relatively high Public Transport Accessibility Level
(PTAL) score of 4 and is close to public transport facilities.

As noted above, taxi's will not collect passengers from the application site, nor would they
park at the site. The applicant has submitted information that the taxi's would be reliant on
GPS applications. No issues have been raised by the Highways Officer to this mode of
operation.

Given the above considerations, the proposed use would not have a detrimental impact
along the adjacent highway network.
Urban design, access and security

The applicant is proposing CCTV in front of the unit to discourage anti-social behaviour and
as part of security measures.
Disabled access

The existing doorway and shopfront would be retained.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Not applicable to this application.
Sustainable waste management

In terms of waste generation and storage, the scale and nature of the proposed use are
such that any waste generated would not be significantly more than that related to a retail
use, which is the existing lawful use on the site.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

There are no adverse air quality issues to address as part of this application proposal. The
issue of noise has been covered in Section 7.08 of this report.
Comments on Public Consultations

No responses were received.
Planning Obligations

Not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

None.

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 52



8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 53



9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposal would not compromise the viability or vitality of the town centre and would
have an acceptable impact on the amenity of adjoining occupiers in compliance with the
objectives of the Council's Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and
the Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) .

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
The London Plan (2016)

National Planning Policy Framework

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement (HDAS) Shopfronts

Contact Officer: Henrietta Ashun Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 54



47

i’[/ B
!

i

[J
7

[TH
i'l'

i

Thikd

Bt . i (;,

!! .'ll :

]

£
1to 48
Sheringham Coul '

s
i)

‘

I S A [ ’
o — iy _ e i 7
i i i ’
7 >

BLYTH ROAD 5

Nl
ey

e
&
&
4
~r
r’ %
F’ ” /7
: g i
<" Shelters 5
5

Station

=7

T
s
;
;

’
i
a
‘ i
‘ I
b '
R
Iy
7 el
s

Hayes and Harlington

.\ 7
i of

k

Vantage

:
] /|| Building |
[

T
<
o |
[
L
;o
<
L=
1 e
[
-
o
Loy
I
Tl i
i
i
,::_'_’:77_|
e S
o e —

LONDON BOROUGH

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with

Site Address:

10 Clayton Road

OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant

exception to copyright.
© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey

Planning Application Ref:
72438/APP/2016/4505

Scale:

1:1,250

Planning Committee:

Central & Sopffe 55

Date:
April 2017

100019283

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56



Agenda ltem 10

PART Il by virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 6, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 68



Agenda ltem 11

PART Il by virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 6, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76



Agenda Annex

Plans for
Central & South
Applications
Planning Committee

Tuesday 16th May
2017

THILLINGDON

OOOOOO

www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 31 MORELLO AVENUE HILLINGDON

Development: Conversion of single family dwelling into 6 bedroom House in Multiple
Occupation (HMO) (Retrospective)

LBH Ref Nos: 72026/APP/2017/1064

Date Plans Received: 23/03/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 23/03/2017

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 78



vV Je0 Vd VA

L]

S3¢ Gdn

367 4o

aniaAy DpON |
ey SN Y
SRR WD

as L10Z Y= padeds 8y
fiquueig e aeag

(Sldsuzgy NGy usijednoag 2di4ng
Ul FSNOY WORJPEG O B 04 UDISJBAUDT)

Tosfoid

UBl4 24/C 3 URl4 uDi4esoT]

auy Buineiq

suoisinay

swewey | g | sea | oy

dog #EIE 006t

wgZ WoZ Wwg| wol wg 9

NYTd 315 000G

v INAY, 05TV, 8 DNV
LITULG-NO) BTN € B

BNIING DNLLEINT TFHL

FEWHOLS TIOAD IWAGH 0L HvFs FHL 1Y
JALIEED 3 a0 GAHS ¥ OTNEE

NOE Ovl SHEVIN NITEVD MY

Page 79




V|10 vd VN _

g uwei L] s

(1) Ing) we|qednoag) a4y
U] N0 WOOPI G B 04 WOISBNLT

kg

(peeodosd ssbuepy ou) ey ooy Buielng

LW ONGNOH L HLW IDWTE000% N STy H00H

N 0% Col - 0T/ NBOLN B0 ONNOUD

EAO0UT3E 40 IMIFOS

oG

SNV MO0 d35040ud ANV ONILGIXT THL Td¥ SNYTId HOO0Td IS5IHL

036040dd 4V GIONVHD TYNHILXT WO ToNHILIN ON

- N¥7ld HO0Td LSYid oG

- NYId HOOTH aNNOYD

Page 80




~

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

31 Morello Avenue

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
72026/APP/2017/1064 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Central & Sopith, g1 May 2017

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

HILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 1 NORMANS CLOSE HILLINGDON MIDDLESEX

Development: Two x two storey, 4-bed dwellings with associated parking and amenity
space, wall/fence to front and installation of two vehicular crossovers,
involving demolition of existing bungalow

LBH Ref Nos: 62184/APP/2016/4117

Date Plans Received: 11/11/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 11/11/2016
Date Application Valid: 22/11/2016

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 82



H. M. LAND REGISTRY GENERAL MAP
GREATER LONDON

MIDDLESEX smeer  XIV. 8. ~ sectoNn G

Scale 1/125Q Enlarged from | 00
BOROUC™ ©= HILLINGDON =

Crown Copyright Reserved

| Filed Plan of Tite No. MX 4 1987 3 -

This is a copy of the title plan on 11 NOV 2016 at 02:57:50. This copy does not take account of any application made after that time even if still pending in the Land
Registry when this copy was issued.

This copy is not an "Official Copy' of the title plan. An official copy of the titie plan is admissible in evidence in a court to the same extent as the original. A person
is entitled to be indemnified by the registrar if he or she suffers loss by reason of a mistake in an official copy. If you want to obtain an official copy, the Land
Registry web site explains how to do this.

The Land Registry endeavours to maintain high quality and scale accuracy of titie plan images.The quality and accuracy of any print will depend on your printer,
your computer and its print settings.This title plan shows the general position, not the exact line, of the boundaries. It may be subject to distortions in scale.
Measurements scaled from this plan may not match measurements between the same points on the ground.

Page 83

© Crown Copyright. Produced by Land Registry. Further reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited without the prior written permission of Ordnance Survey.
Licence Number 100026316.

This title is dealt with by Land Registry, Wales Office.



e

= . 5
i §H NUMM ueld ays M 9¢m.m\.me
= = z . _

G
e — T |
— / 3S010 SNYWHON

Bunnsuo) _— e

% buluue|d | _. |

poomjuaig /

SIED
oy a03 Bunped

omj joid

auo joid

000C¢ §
00028}

Page

SRON (DI




0ok-L

LUEIET
g

1002d8 [sesnoy peqip X g
- Py

yue san
xesa|pPPIN
uopBuljiy

880|D SUBULION |
Wy po S ey

dv¥ FLND

0883
poomjuaig
1e8is yBIH 001

siglaw g

Bunnsuon
» buluue|d
poomjuaig

sigja g

100}} 3811
% punoib pasodoid

SHON [CIMURD

Page 85



0ok-L

-

LUEIET
g

Z002d8 [sesnoypaqy X
- Py

H¥e 8aN
xesRPPIN
uopBuliH

8850]0 SUBULION |
— P v Yoo

dvt ¥LND
0883

poomuaig
1sang YBIH 00l

Bunnsuo)
© buluue|d
poomjuaig

SHON [CIMURD

S8l g sigjaw o

I BN

SUONBASID
Jeal % juody pasodouid

Page 86



wEI 0011
-

LLoERWLD
o

LOOLET

050D SUBULION |
o v Yooy

AV PLND e
poomIuLE
weag Ul 0oL

Bunnsuo)
© buluue|d
poomualg

SHON [CIMURD

i

siajaw us} sigall

suoljeAe

HEEEEB
= SUol}eAs|d
aplIs auo jo|d

{FHAAHHHE

Page 87



0ok-L

-

LUEIET
g

£002d8 [sesnoypaqy X g
- Py

H¥e 8aN
xesRPPIN
uopBuliH

8850]0 SUBULION |
— P v Yoo

dv FLND
0883
poomjuaig
1e8is yBIH 001

Bunnsuo)
© buluue|d
poomjuaig

SHON [CIMURD

siglow g

LIESENTR,)

suolneaAs|a apis pasodoud

Page 88



Pield Heath
House School

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

1 Normans Close

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
62184/APP/2016/4117 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Central & Sqﬂébe 89 April 2017

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 12 GROVE WAY UXBRIDGE

Development: Two storey side extension, single storey rear extension, conversion of roof
space to habitable use to include 3 rear rooflsights and 1 side rooflight and
porch to front

LBH Ref Nos: 71844/APP/2017/329

Date Plans Received: 27/01/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 14/02/2017
Date Application Valid: 14/02/2017

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 90



8LV

woe g 1}
:

052l iy @eeog) gy g peyoaun 7 sy g peubisag

LI02-L0-02 eled 7 h-higl dequinu joaloid

Ue|d UoljedoT e Bumeig

4L 8an ‘ebpugxn
Rep arois 21 Blg

U0 ©) Yalog PUB UDISIBAUDD
jooY ‘uoistalXg 1eeY Aeiolg tafilL 1oalold
sifuig ‘'uoisuag epig ABI0jS oM

jaiuen Aus) N CEWRN U

L102/20/80
NO d31¥adN 133HS/ONIMYEA

‘saloN

“81is uo peuinbey aq Aew syiom Buppng useseiojun

[EUtIpRE UONS S8 pUR sucenbay BUIDING 1UBLNG U} LM SOUBPICIOE U] 16340

jeaues Buipng Auouink [E307 eu) o uoydeysES Ayl o palsidities aq o} yiom Buiping Iy,
815 LD PERIOIa) LOHELLICIUI BU) PUB BUMEIR Syl USBMIEG PUNG) 818 SEOUBCBIRSI MR j
femipetw 1odey SHoM |0 1UBWEIUSLIWED 0 Jojid 815 LD PENIBYD Bq O] SUDSUBLUIP Iy,
DI CIPAIS SIUGIDANYDIY B WOI| IUBSLOD LBHLM

etad Jnoym ped U1 1o Sjoum Ul paonposded 10 POTIUSURY 'pasn aq jou AW PUe B opmg
suapeyasy jo Apsdouxd speaud B S| UILIM PEUIBILOD UOBULC)U| BU) puB inode ],
"UQISIARI SUIES BU] |0 UDHEIUBILNIOR JBUIS LIIM UORIUNUCS Ul PESN B PINOYS INOAR] SI1.

ejoN

HN'00 0IPNISOIUOIDBIYDIR MMM
¥N"00"0lpNISOIOIOBIYOIR@)0JUI: T
FEPOEPSIYLO (BL
MM-UoPUOT XVE NFOM
18al1g 181$8dnolD PIO L&

P¥1 OIPNIS JIU0IRNYDIY

HLHON “

L

depy uoneso]

Page 91

dO1I 8gn ‘ebpugxn

Kep anoln 21




‘a8 uo pannbes eq Aew syom Buiping usesasojun
[euoippe yons se pue suonenbey Buiping Juauns ey} yim SoUBDICIOR Ul 1830

3N’"00" 0IPNISOILOIOB)ILIE MMM
3N°00"0lpnISoIUCloalyaIeE@0oIUL ]

ws

1 0

sy g paxoauo 7 sy g paubisaq

4ol 8an ‘ebpuaxn
x..m}; anosy Z1 as

U0DJ) O] Ydlod pue uo|siaauel

leques Buiping Auouny oo ey) jo uonoesnes ay) o) pajedwes aq o) yiom Buiping |y,
"8IS UD PSPI0DS) UOIBLIICIUI BU) PUE BUMEIR SIy1 UBBMISq PUNG) BIE Seiourdeasnsip Aue |
femEipeww odsly SHIom |0 JUBWSeIUBLUWES o} Joid B)iS LD PEXI8YD Bq O] SUDISUSLUIP ||y,
BI CIPRS SIUSISeY2IY SU) WO JUSsUsD Lajiim

] 'pesn aq jou AEwW pue pr] olpnig

Joud Jnoyum ped Ul 1o 8joys Ul peonpoided 1o poji:

COLY |oor:1 ev@orss
00Y ‘Uoisus|x3 Jesy Aaiols el josloid
L102-10-02 eleq 7 zi-tiel  asqunu josloig PP B e it S £10220/90
e : . NO Q31¥adN L3FHSONIMYHA auoseyyany jo Auedosd epeaud B S| LIYIM POUIBILCS LOIEWLION 8y} pue (noe
ue|d »oo|g Buns X3 :en Bumeig lelueq Aual I BWEN U0 :sal0N "UOISIAGI BWES BY] |0 UOREJUBWINGOP JBUIO LIIM UORIUNMUCS W| PESN & PInoys Inoke| U—.l— Q_Uq:.w 0_=°~8_._ F—O‘_q
00k <

Y8POEPSIYL0 1BL
MN-UOpUOT ‘XVE NLOM
1eang 18)sadno|o PlO L2

NITAVO INCAd

|

uoisuaxe ASI0JS
a|Eug Busng
‘0LN 8sNoH

AYVANNOE AL¥3dOdd

NITYVO vy

Ueld >oolg Bunsix3 €0 __

Ay,
—“Nhog 4
I&i'doé,
—— 404y

Page 92




ws L 0 " ‘a8 uo pannbes eq Aew syom Buiping usesasojun S o
! dot wm_.._ m@..mou_cnx_:_ i [euoippe Yons se pue suogenBey BUIpING JUSLIND BU) LM BIUBPICIOE Ul 1840 HN'O2"0IPNISILCIO8)ILIIE MMM
M 5zl Bl leguon Buippng Auoyiny [eaet ey) jo uooesnes ey} of pajedwoes aq o) yom Buiping |1y, 3N"02°0IPNISIUOIDBHYdIR@ O T
—. O —-< 0oLl sy @eeos| gy g pewoeun 7 sy :fgpeubiseq z.s__m uo uw__uﬁwe UO[IEWIG)U) B4 pue Bumweip ﬂ.shmmssn punej ase wmu.._mu_wuw ___Em I $EPOEHSLEL0 (8L
O, 01 U210 PUE UOISIAUCD _ ) S S sRI eI ka8 i eioo s N-UOPUOT 'XVE NLOM
§ : o), P o IOy U WO JUBsU0D Laj 3
LL02-10-02 sleq 7 Zi-Lsl Jsquuinu joalold m_mc_mhn_.mn”.u__mU_M_wmﬁw_mmﬁmwmumﬂﬂw L Reind LL02/20/30 1oud Jnoyum ped ul 1o sjoym ul paonpoides Jo pajiusURL pasn eq jou Aew pue pr] opnis 1981]S 18]s8an0l9) PIO L2
e : . NO Q31¥adN L3FHSONIMYHA ajuaaeqiyany jo Auedosd sjeaud e S| LIYIM POUIBILIOS LOIEWLIOUI 8y} pue jnoks) siy),
f - . - I i u
sue|d 00| 1J0] ¢ 1S114 ‘puNoID) BUNSIXT  en bumeia BlUEa ALIBL I (BWEN U9 — UQISIARI BUES BU) JO UOHEIUBLUNIOP JBLI0 LM UOGUN[ucs u| pasn eq pINous Ino, «__.w_e_._o._..,_ U—.l— Q_Uq:.w 0_=°~8= —.—0&
0oL: oL 00kL:
ue|d Jooj4 Isiid Bunsix3 Lo ue|d 100|4 punois) Bunsix3 00
E 3gEYO INOHS

ue|d 400|4 Jo7 Bunsix3 20

_ Jj E—

1407

L01Y

|
] [ —
W5
£ WoOHa389
_” Ll e ' _” AW Gl
L WooHa3d { IONNOT
— g =l
i TIvH |
—
_” AU gL V4 _”
2 WooHa3g ) AEL
Mg 2 NOILd303d
WOOHHLYE
|  f—— —
..,/.f.
UOISUBXS ABIO)S
a|5uig Buyspa
'OIN 8snoH

L01Y

AWANNOE ALd3d Odd

NITAVO A3y

Page 93

=W ol
NIHOLIH




0LV

we ] L 0

L

05:1 £V @ eeog

sy g paxoauo 7 sy g paubisaq

L102-10-02 -eled 7 Zh-hiel equinu joalold

uoleAs|q Juolq Bunsixg  en bumeig

4ol 8an ‘ebpuaxn
ABpp A0S 21 2ls

W0J) O] Yo PUB UOISIBAUDD
Jo0Y ‘Uoisua)x3 Jeay Aaiolg 8L Josloid
a|bulg ‘uoisue)g epis Asiolg om|

|elueq Auial I BWEN UBD

LL02/20/30
NO Q31¥adN L33HSONIMYHA

'saloN

“8ys U0 paunbe aq few syiom Buipyng usesaiojun

[EuOHIpPE Yons s pue suoenBer Buiping JUeLnd ey} Yl BOUEPICITE U] JEO0

leguon Buippng Auoyiny [eaet ey) jo uooesnes ey} of pajedwoes aq o) yom Buiping |1y,
"8IS UD PSPI0DS) UOIBLIICIUI BU) PUE BUMEIR SIy1 UBBMISq PUNG) BIE Seiourdeasnsip Aue |
femEipeww odsly SHIom |0 JUBWSeIUBLUWES o} Joid B)iS LD PEXI8YD Bq O] SUDISUSLUIP ||y,
“BI CIPMIS SILGISANLYDIY BU) WO JUSSLOD LIajum

Joud Jnoyus Hed ) 10 8oy Ul peanpoided J0 PajIWSUEI ‘pasn 8q jou Aew pue pr] olpnig
aiuajosyiyany jo Auadosd sjeaud & S| UIYIM POUIRILOD LOIBULIOM BU) PUe INoAE) i),
“UQISIAG! BLIES U] |0 UONEUSWNDOR JBYI0 LM UaRouniuce Ul pasn eq pInoys Inake) s,

“ooN

3N’"00" 0IPNISOILOIOB)ILIE MMM
3N°00"0lpnISoIUCloalyaIeE@0oIUL ]
FePOEPSIYLO (1BL
MM-Uopuo XVE NFOM
198115 18}saonolo pIO L2

P¥1 OIPNIS JIU0IBMNYIY

HAHHAHAHHHHAH A A A A A A A HHH

Page 94




1443

we | 0

4ol ggn ‘ebpuaxn

Aep aroiy 21 als

05:1 ey@aess| gy g payoaun 7 sy g paubisaq

U0DJ) O] Ydlod pue uo|siaauel

Jo0Y ‘Uoisua)x3 Jeay Aaiolg 8L Josloid

L102-10-02 8leq 7 Zh-bigr usguinu joelold aBUIS ‘UoISUS)XT apiS ABI0)S oML

uoneAs|3 apiS ¥ BunsIxg  :euy bumeg leluBQ ALisL I ;W 1UBI0

LL02/20/30
NO Q31¥adN L33HSONIMYHA

'saloN

“8yis uo pauinbay 8q Aew syom Buiping useseioiun

[euoippe yons se pue suonenbey Buiping Juauns ey} yim SoUBDICIOR Ul 1830

leques Buiping Auouny oo ey) jo uonoesnes ay) o) pajedwes aq o) yiom Buiping |y,
"8IS UO PBPICOs) UOIEWIoIU Byl pUE GUWMEID SIy) UBEMIEq PUNC) BIe SeuRdamnsip AUE |
AeEipeww Podsky SHIoMm j0 JUBWEIUBIWCD 0} Joud 8)Is LD PENISD B O] SUDISUBLUIP ||y,
BI CIPRS SIUSISeY2IY SU) WO JUSsUsD Lajiim

Joud Jnoyum ped Ul 1o 8joys Ul peonpoided 1o poji: ] 'pesn aq jou AEwW pue pr] olpnig
aiuajoayany jo Auadosd sjeaud & S| LIYIM PAUIEILOD LOHELLIOJI BY) PUE INoAE)
"UOISIAGI BLWES BY] |0 UOREIUBWINIOR JBYO Yim Uogounfucs U pesn eq pinoys noke|

3N’"00" 0IPNISOILOIOB)ILIE MMM
3N°00"0lpnISoIUCloalyaIeE@0oIUL ]
FePOEPSIYLO (1BL
MM-Uopuo XVE NFOM
198115 18}saonolo pIO L2

P¥1 OIPNIS JIU0IBMNYIY

|
I
I I —

T ]

[T

0s:1

uoneAs|3 apIS Yo bunsix3

N —
C~ 1=

O ) om—

Page 95




GOV

we | 0

L

05:1 £V @ eeog

sy g paxoauo 7 sy g paubisaq

L102-10-02 -eled 7 Zh-hiel equinu joalold

uoneAs|3 Jeay BUNSIXT  ens bumeg

4ol 8an ‘ebpuaxn
x..m}; anosy Z1 as

W0J) O] Yo PUB UOISIBAUDD
Jo0Y ‘Uoisua)x3 Jeay Aaiolg 8L Josloid
a|bulg ‘uoisue)g epis Asiolg om|

|elueq Auial I BWEN UBD

LL02/20/30
NO Q31¥adN L33HSONIMYHA

'saloN

“ayis uo peusinbes aq few syiom Buiping usesalojun

[euoippe yons se pue suonenbey Buiping Juauns ey} yim SoUBDICIOR Ul 1830

leques Buiping Auouny oo ey) jo uonoesnes ay) o) pajedwes aq o) yiom Buiping |y,
"8IS UD PSPI0DS) UOIBLIICIUI BU) PUE BUMEIR SIy1 UBBMISq PUNG) BIE Seiourdeasnsip Aue |
femEpeww) Lodey S¥I0Mm |0 JUBWEIUBLILCS 0 Joud B)IS U0 PENISUD &4 O] SUDISUSLIP |y,
BI CIPRS SIUSISeY2IY SU) WO JUSsUsD Lajiim

Joud Jnoyum ped Ul 1o 8joys Ul peonpoided 1o poji: ] 'pesn aq jou AEwW pue pr] olpnig
ajuajeqyany jo Apadosd ejeaud & ) UIYIM PEUIRILOD UOHBLLLIGI| BUY) pUe Jnoks)
"UOISIAGI BLWES BY] |0 UOREIUBWINIOR JBYO Yim Uogounfucs U pesn eq pinoys noke|

3N’"00" 0IPNISOILOIOB)ILIE MMM
3N°00"0lpnISoIUCloalyaIeE@0oIUL ]
FePOEPSIYLO (1BL
MM-Uopuo XVE NFOM
198115 18}saonolo pIO L2

P¥1 OIPNIS JIU0IBMNYIY

Page 96




we |

L

0

901V

05:1 £V @ eeog

sy g paxoauo 7 sy g paubisaq

AemEpaww) Lodey SHIOM |0 JUBLBIUBWIICD O] J01d SIS LD PEXOBLD 8q 0] SUOISUBWIP Y, PBrOEYS _.. vL0:8L
L02-10-02 a1eQ 7 zI-1191 Jequiny 1980o1d Joo ‘uojsus)x3 fesy Aeuojg efilL jaslold 1 1OZ/20I90 4 - o P1 GBS SISO O W) 1UESLOD LBl N-UopUoT XVE NEDM
LLOZ- 10 K - E I . . Jsoud Jnoyym Ul 10 B|OYM U] paonpaidal o pajilWSLED "pasn aq jou fel pue pr] oipnig
8ibuis ‘uoisuan spis feiols omL NO Q31¥adN L3FHSONIMYHA o_zu_us_:ua_ o .E_mnoh aeaLd B 5| LM POLIBILICS LOIEWLIO) 8y} puE jnode 188115 181S83N0I9 PIO L&
uoleAs|3 epis F_m_m_ Buns IXJ ey Bumeig elLeq Au1a] I :BWEN U0 ‘saloN "UOISINGI BUWES BY] |0 UOHEJUBWNOOP JBYI0 Yiim UoRaUNfuos u| pesn &q pinoys inoke| U—.l— Q_Uq:.w 0_=°~8_._ F—OE

4ol 8an ‘ebpuaxn
Kepm oroin Z1 8IS

U0DJ) O] Ydlod pue uo|siaauel

“ayis uo peusinbes aq few syiom Buiping usesalojun
[euoippe yons se pue suonenbey Buiping Juauns ey} yim SoUBDICIOR Ul 1830

leques Buiping Auouny oo ey) jo uonoesnes ay) o) pajedwes aq o) yiom Buiping |y,
"8IS UD PSPI0DS) UOIBLIICIUI BU) PUE BUMEIR SIy1 UBBMISq PUNG) BIE Seiourdeasnsip Aue |

3N’"00" 0IPNISOILOIOB)ILIE MMM
3N°00"0lpnISoIUCloalyaIeE@0oIUL ]

051

uoneas|3 apIS by Bunsixg

Page 97




we

| 0

VAV

05:1 £V @ eeog

sy g 85207 sy :fgpaubiseq

L102-10-02

‘eleq 7 ZL-L91 Jsquuinu joalold

uonoag BunsIXg :epy Bumeq

4ol aan ‘ebpuaxn
ABpp A0S 21 s

W0J) O] Yo PUB UOISIBAUDD
Jo0Y ‘Uoisua)x3 Jeay Aaiolg 8L Josloid
a|bulg ‘uoisue)g epis Asiolg om|

|elueq Auial I BWEN UBD

LL02/20/30

NO Q31¥adN L33HSONIMYHA

“8yis uo pauinbay 8q Aew syom Buiping useseioiun
|euopippe yons se pue sucnenbey Buiping Juauns ay) yim SoUBDICSOE Ul I

femEpeww) Lodey $¥Iom |0 JUBWEIUBIWLCS 0 Joud B)IS L0 PENISLD &g O] SUO|SU!
"BI CIPRS SIUCIOHYDIY BU) WO JUSsUeD Lap.

Joud Jnoyum ped Ul 1o 8joys Ul peonpoided 1o poji: ] 'pesn aq jou AEwW pue pr] olpnig
ajuajaeqyany jo Apedosd ejeaud & ) UM PEUIBILOD UOHBLLIGI| BY) pue InoAe) iy,

%N" 00" 0IPNISOILOIDBYLIIE MMM
3N°00"0lpnISoIUCloalyaIeE@0oIUL ]
FePOEPSIYLO (1BL
MM-Uopuo XVE NFOM
198115 18}saonolo pIO L2

4 €128

jooy Bunsix3 €0

-saloN “UOISIAGI BLUES 8] |0 UOEIUSIINDOR JBYI0 YIM UORIUNUCS U| pesn &q pInoys =5:§...”__—.._.".._-.,M uﬂl— o_u—.—-w o_-.hOﬂs-_ —.—oa
4 :
hS ue|d Jooj4 punols) Bunsix3 00 y \
7 S
/ N\
P 2 NOILd303d AN /s JoNNOT
N 7/
AN . 7/
[c0)
®»
N (0]
.‘ 0562 [ ] w
' ued ool4 15114 Bunsix3 Lo , aN
/ X
/ N
2 Woowaza L WooHa3g
N 7
* /
%
-‘ 0SSS
I ued ool4 Yo Bunsix3 2o




wg ] 0 = ‘B Lo PEANDE) B ADW 0w BUIDING UBBSBIOJUN IDUOIPPT o )
. | oL=il 451 gan ‘abpuarn YOS SO PuD sucyoinBay BUDINg JUSLND SU) UM SIUBRIOII0 UL B0 I04U0T AN O UIPNYEINUCL I D MMM
£Y @ 2(00% Ak SNk o Guppng Apouny 10907 8Uj JO UCYODISYOS By} Of PayaKdwod 8q o} yom Buppng Iy A0 OIPNYSSIUCIOSIUDEOLU 13
M 1D ZL s “UDHDUWAUCT 555 PUD AYDIDSL POCE) 58| USRI PRFOCFS 1F40 TI91
_. _. —. < o AQ par2ayd o Aq paubisag 10 B500 U] SRIOM 0 JUBMLBIUBLILIOT O S0ud BY5 UD DENIEUT 8Q O SUDEUSLID | SN-UDPUBT “KYE NIDM
JUDJ} O} UDIOG PUD UOISIIAUDD) = .ﬂ_whuam OIS O __._Scouh_uw:_._.saﬁ au} noujm pod uj 10 {35115 JOISINOID PIO £
H . BIOLM U Paon| B 40 PBYJILUSUDY, ‘DESN B4 j0U ADL PUD D)) CI0NIS HUO|ZBHLI N
2102 Aonuor T ZI-1191  Jsquinu joalold 100y "uoisUBLA 108y Aaupyg Hoslod | |LLOE/VOIVE nzv...”om_ a..__.::cr_ £ 10 Auadiond BIomId © § LI PBUIDIUGT USHOWLU k| PUD INGAD] S84
B|BUIS "UOEUSPG SPIS ABIOIS OM] £102/20/90 pasney e wudld| Z SOIINBI BLUDS B} JO SUCHDOYIBGS § opris
. LI0E/10/0Z anss| Buucyd | | SHNPAYDS SEOIOP SEUMDIP FSUI0 IO Wi UOIIUNILGS Ul DOSY 84 1571 Butsop su g
unid 320|g Um.mOO_Ohn_ @] Bumoig |ong Ausy W HusID s ToHamEag o8 Caata Juooalio)y
00L: 1 @
ue|d Yoo0|g pasodoid €0
NITEVD INOHS \

E, Buysia auy
E.I YI0LU O 52l JOOY maN

m UBIARS ooy

° 00k
_a._ E _@ WBIAAS Jooy %
o . \ Buyss auy %
YDDLU O} S|l JO0Y MBN 0]
o

Busixe sy

uoIsUB XS ASI0|S
Y2DW O} 59|} JOOY MmaN

a|Bug Buyseg
‘OIN 85n0H

ASVANNOSE Al¥340dd

NIV dvIy




we L [6 o] |
e @ S0D25
mo _. < o Aq payosud sv  hapaublsg
£10Z Aonuor |jog Ti-l19l  sagquinu joaloly

uD|d 100]4 pUNoCIS) pPasodold :ai Buwmoig

4D 730 “86pugHN
fomaacmzl el

UL} O UDIOd PUD USISIDAUOT

JOON "UDIEUBLT 1DaY Aoy H19lolg

B|BUIT UOELSPG SIS ADI01S OMmL

[Pung Aus) W uSiD

LEOZIPOIVE patingy Buuuoy| ¢

LEOZ/T0M0 pasiaey Bunmold| 2

LIDZ/10/02 angs| Butuicyd | |
ajeg uojdiasag Ay

g U0 peanbed B0 ADw Syiok. BUIDING USB5BI0IUN ICUCHIDED

W2 $0 pun SUcOINGSY Duping LUSLND aU) W S3UCDIOII0 UL ISONG 04U03
BlapEng ALY 9907 SUj 19 UCHITIHDS SUJ 0} PBISIIWED B ) Hom Buping iy
“UCHTLURATD 4BES DD ADipaus poder seouB|suo D

|0 BS0D U] SXE0M [0 JUSMUBDUBWLWIOS O) 0d 8J5 U0 PIRDEUD BG 0F SUBEUBLID iy
‘B4 GRS SRICIIBD 0 JUBIU0D UBjium sond Bul inouyle ped U e

B L PSR X0 PEILTID ‘BESN 83 {OU ADW PUD DT OIBNYS HUO| IS DNy
10 Auadoxd Sioasd O % UM PRUIDIUDD USHOULDIUN BU| PUD NOAD] 51|

L0inABS BLUDS B4 J0 SUcyDIpoads

SBPRETS AR TBUAMEID S0 B0 L L SUNRIGD L D08 S4 1 Bl Sl

O CIPRISDIUCIDE DD MMM
4O APNISHIU0IZB IO 13
PRPOEFSIPL0 oL
HAN-UCPUOT WYE NLIDM
1981|5 18|S83N0D PIO 42

olprus
SlUoDeliUDY 7 m<

SBS1/9 10T/ ddv /b¥B1 L 1oy uoyooddy
Japun paaciddy

Agnoinad uoyooiddy ay; O SBUND e e —

g

00kt 1

L

ue|d 100|4 puno.r) pasodoid 00

®

00ey BanoH Buysig

00ZF UOILS|NS BRI MaN

NIGYYD INOS
I__\Ix |: / 0wz w
— — — P o — \ﬁ . __
S|
— FONNCT
)
A/«\\
1 e 1
NOIL43238
Al G
MIHDLN
Ml —_ I
2 1 [lud
H OBez. | (T ez
) 0|
uolsuS e A2iojs 2 NOWLJID3Y _l
3Buig Buyshg || & 0 | — =] — o
ool | 5 (. (.
5 L2l sl
1 He-
m — p—_ e
. + 14
OBDE WDIM UOSLSLG 108y 89\
=
o
:
w=
Q
=
&
P
A
-
NITIVO av3y

Page 100




"B U0 PEANDE 54 ADW $3)0w. BUIDENG USESBI0IUN IBUCHIDDO

wg L 0 5 - .
ogLat 401 gan s6pugHn L2 S0 pan SucqDInBSy Buing LUSHNGD ag) Wi S3U0RI0I30 U1 S0 I04U0D AN O CIPNEDILCI D8 HLEID M
£Y @ 2005 1o, b S Baping Ajlouny 19007 U J0 UCHIDIIOS SUj OF PBISIIWDD B0 0} 10w BEpING iy AT O OPNSUDI28IYIDGOo)Ul 13
M BADID E1 -5 UDHOUIUDT 985 DUD ADIDEU oo ‘Seious|EIaoU PRPOEYS 1540 0L
Qo _. < o AQ penoaul o hgpeuBssg [0 STV U] S350 [0 JUSMUBIGBWLCST 0| 0l SIS L0 DENDaUD 8 0f SUSKUALIE iy SN-LGPUST YE NIDM
UG} ©f Y204 PUD UOISIIAUOD = .ﬂ.ﬁhuna SUO|IEINY ..oEwES»,NH_E.oE B NOUIM 0T U 10 {28115 181BIN0I0 PIO) 42
) . 5 T BOLA L PEaDn| G 20 PEILITUD, ‘DESn B3 joU PUD D) OIS THUGIEHI DN
10T Aonuor wea | Zi-119l sequinu joslold - Muwwmmvm_mnummﬁwumomu%m Haelold M”MM%N W.”w“ me..ﬁﬂ M 10 MBS BB © S UL BUADIUGE UBHIGUATIUL BU| PUS INGAD1 544 -
kS o it . - L0inABS BLUDS B4 J0 SUcyDIpoads (mgil
: LIOZ/10/0T anss| Buuoy | | SBPPIYSS SHOP SBUIMDID JSUID B9 Ll U SUNRI0T Ut DO 84 15 ELmop Sl | g
uid 100} {514 pasodold e Bumog [BIUDa ALBL I uelD S e P i SIUODSElU D)y

SBS1/9 10T/ ddv /b¥B1 L 1oy uoyooddy
Japun paaciddy

Agnoinad uoyooiddy ay; O SBUND e e —

g

0oLt

ue|d 400|4 18114 pasodoid” L0

AU G|
¥ WOON03e

P

—_—
A G
WOOA A¥1d
|
n 1 WODH03e
)
<
AUg]
WOoOoHa38
TWOO e
WOOHHIVE

A g
EWOoOoE038

[ i ——

g1y

®

asnoy |puiBuc auj Upm ysoly

a0 o} [|[om JDay ‘uoisuaxy
opIs 100} Jsiid

Page 101




OLLY

L 0 0011

£ @ 9025

v Agpa¥osud

v  Agpeuiseg

4o gan ‘sBpugxn
O BA0ID Z1

JUDI) O UDIOd PUD USISIBAUDD)

s

LLOE/FO/VE

patinay Buuuold

‘B U paanbey 5 ADu S0 BLIDING USBSBICHUN IDUCIIPED

Y S0 pun sucyoinBay Buping JUSLND S} s SSUDRIOI0 UL IS0 YU
Buppng ALOUny [0007 8Uj JO UCYDIDSYDS BY) O} PBJBIIWOD 8q of YoM Buppng |
UCHDUARIG D 4588 Pun Apau pode s8|SuBsIuo S|

10 9503 U] "THOM JO JUBLBIUBLALOD 0 0ud BiS UC PBYDEYD B4 O SUDSUSLIP |V
"B DIPNIS SUCIISEYDNY |0 JUSSUOD USiUm 5000 BU) INouIs pod Uy 1o

AN 0D OIPNISIIUBIIBHYDID" MMM
AT OD QIPNISOIUCI28 IGO0l 13
FRFOCFS 1FL0 TI9L
AN-UOPUOT "VE M1DM
12815 1B|SB0NTID PIO £

4 . B0UM U PEONROICEN K0 PEJILISUDY 'DESN B jOU ADW PUD D] CIDNIS DUC|B{IYIN
2102 Aonuor @100 L1191 equinu joalolg 100} ‘Uojsuapa 108y Aaiolg 11280k oo B = 16 Auadond BIomIE © § Ui PRUIDIUGT USHOWLSHU k| PUD INGAD] S84
B|BUIS "UOEUSPG SPIS ABIOIS OM] £102/20/90 pasney e wudld| Z SOIINBI BLUDS B} JO SUCHDOYIBGS § opris
. LI0E/10/0Z anss| Buucyd | | SHNPAYSS SEOIOP SEUMDID IO IO Uit UOISUNILGD Ul POSI 84 1501 Butsoip 5wy I g
upjd Ho1 meon_ohn_ 3yl Buwmoig |BIuDg AuSL W HUSID 3150 wondiziag Fr =itene JuooaliLony
0oL: L j
_. )
ue|d J00|4 Yo pasodoid 20
—

/ o

3 o

—

(0]

1S g —
— (@)}
./m.noﬁ__u_.s (VR [0
— o
(o /] F
1LY L
3
1401
— | OJ
AN

M
L

Ml

ajnsug

g

aLly




".r_m |
0 05 Buany
il
cLLY R aonsrea
— S e mG_Mm:‘cmu_ﬁxD
- uBisaq omen ,
£102 Aonuor @jog FAR L o o
-9l uegquinu joalol 4 dorniopa Ky At -
. . | : peanoas
= n_ - = . 4% 50 pun sucyoinBay Bupy el
DA JuOl] Pasodold el Bumo aluig 'uosuapg mﬁwm_mww_omm%a Yjosloy | |LL0zivoivE pasined Bu — _stzama_,__mu_ﬁm.wwegzosowwzuwwmmsa.&,__zwcu,_us
. LADIC ! ] L10Z/Z0/ nod BUIICH] Jo @ . UCYDWAUC Uj o4 pajadwos X o bl
70 £ D3 U] S0 t TOLEEET il bt opnin :
jong Ausp aw HusID 2102/ 10/0C u&h.uu M..__c:oz z apum TP HPAIS MO Sy o i o | Sopuaisuooy u_:.ou.oﬁ_._mu__.__%wwﬂm%mu
HUVET 55| B .Uwuavpb.m.b 2 E_o:._a..._owc il oo . : .
ajog m WuoHd| | ok PeyLISUD ‘PEsn e L iy e |
oydposag A8 10 Auedod slomd 0 5 s sy ocenty s 2
i) ¥ 3 LI PRI gl o
SIPIYS SIISP SBUMD. " _Hmw,w_o.%xtéc_ au uch ____whm._uw;.w 19Hs eEne 50
IMOIP JBUIC D i UOHIGNRIOD c.:mwy_f:ofo._nu_.__uwnm.a_ e
! ! 0 15 Bussaop sy SIS
ool SIUoPSNY mq
uollea or
(=]
|3 U044 pasodold
n|
T} 1 1 1
I T 1 1§ 1§
T} | I | I I _— I I T I T " T " T . 1 : 1 : 1 : : : .
H . — . : : : : : T : T . T T I I I | I | I 1 I I I 1 I 1 : 1
H____._.._._._._.d_______—__._d_ ~ ..__H____________ | ——
H_______._...._____d___d___ T _________H_H_.:___
H__._._ S E= \  —— _____________...__d_d__
H_______ — T _.__H____ _________H____d_d_d_ _
L L L 1 L L L L : : : : : : : : : : : d
: _ | | : : : : ; : : : [ r r - T I I T 1
 m—— I o ———— === d =
L —— L e e e s : m i @
e __.___ e S s s e :ooEo:__mxwmé
e 7 T ..n_________ -
: i
m—_—_____ . "_"___ d_dudud.
- _ = : - DU,
 —— = 7 T _ —— o __ — m_zmsmc._u_xm:u_os.o,,,,mﬂuu:u
HH"H____ _ _ _ . — _____: __d_d_“_ ..m._oouvmuo_mm_n:oukcm_?
L e _ _ o — S S i G S i ol JE — S e m.z
H____ | 1 1 _H______._.H.______ _d_d_d h
T P _____H____H__T._________H__ __ T T
H____“_“__ IR —— .__..__”________H_H I _ _ _ T
13 e s T ITIT - | — =
i T AT ; - |
i 1 | | En_l _|_ —_: __l _ _ _ _
zE==ss=s _:.ﬁ_.:.ﬁ_.__.:._ﬁ__.fﬂ.::: i s
H — | | | | | .: | T | T | T | |
= INIBURINIBY EeEesr :
e IO TTIT W ITTT A o
SESSSESS T EFEFEFEFE:: Sesee p
1 — L 1 i == d :
_ _ | 1L 1 1 L L
H____. T . :
_ : __ I I T
- RN e ———— £
| | _ | _ | _ | 1 I I I T I a
i —
i I 1 " 1 L 1 L | P
- | - | - | - :
- alAys u Buys e
A A ._omn_xn DDLU O} MOPLIM
G pazo|B ajgnop man
I |10 0f Buzois Ajsjos
1 1
1 1
L 1 L 1
1 1
I 1 I T
I . I .
1 __ 1 .
_ Buysma @
15t Y
U3oW o} sap Jooy .swL

BIAAS Jo0y




we L [i] £ ‘B Lo PEANDE) B ADW 0w BUIDING UBBSBIOJUN IDUOIPPT o X
sl 401 gan ‘eBpugrn 425 SO PuD suoyoinBay GUDING JUSIND BU| Ljim SIUDRIIDI0 Ul B0 ID4UOT AN O CIPAYSIUCLIBHY DO MMM
Y @ 8005 A : o Buppng AjLouny 10307 8Uj JO UCYIDISYDS ByYj Of PaIeIdWoD 8q O) Yowm Buppng v AT O OIPN|SIUO|2BIYIDGO0)U) 13
DM SA0ID ZL 25 UOHCHURUOD §OES PUD A|DIDSUN [0S 'S8|2US|SEU0 U PRFOCKS 1740 T18L
m” _. _. < o Ag payoayD ¢y :Ag peuBisag 10 S50 U] SH0M JO JUBMLIBIUBLLLLCT 0} 200d BYIS UD PBY28UD 8q Of SUSELBLIP | SN-LOPUOT XY N1
" ‘BT SRS HUCIIBIYDNY 0 JUSSUOD US| Jold B Inouis pod U o € NLDOM
1uol) 0} U210d PUD LOISIBAUOD 13l ZIvOIVE patmay BULLUD| £ BI0UM Ul PEONPOIHSS K PEYILISUDY, ‘DE5N 80 joU ADL PUD B OIS U3y 188418 125820l PIO L2
£102 Aonuor w@jog L9 egquinu joafold 100y “uoisuDy J0BY Adiojg HI3M0M] | |LL ’ - c Bur " jo Auadosd Siomd © § Ui PRUIDIUGT USHOWLCHU S| PUD INGAD] S84
B|BUIS "UOEUSPG SPIS ABIOIS OM] £102/20/90 pasney e wudld| Z SOIINBI BLUDS B} JO SUCHDOYIBGS § opris
. LI0E/10/0Z anss| Buucyd | | SHOPAYSS SE0IEP SHUMDID JSUID IO Ui UOHIUNILOD Ul DOSI 84 15N Busmoip sy g
uolpnasg apI§ a7 Um.mOO_Dhn_ @) Bumoig |eIuDg AuSL I HUBID . T e =itene Juooalio)y
0s:1
0
uoneAs|3 apig Yo pesodoird
I
Buysixe oy L
YOO Of HIOMASLE “ E ;;
1
L
[BUSOLW pUD (usiu How)
ajA4s Ul BUYSIKS YOI Of MOpUIm - || Buysixe so ysiul papusy
¢ Jo0p pazoib Sgnop man
"SMOpUM |0 0} BuZDID AjajDs =
)
<
o
IRIRINIBAA] = = . Buyse auy -
ﬂ ILITTT I UDDLW O} 58|} JO0Y MBN [0}
[T (@)}
&
TITTITALTIT
b
sty How)
Buysixa so ysiug papuay
1
L LY
= Buysie auy
UDDW O} S8|1} JO0Y MaN
SIYBIAS jooy
14BIIA%S Jooy




1494

we | 0 0501
" EV B 8035
o AgQ panoayd v  Agpeuiseg
102 Aonuor @jng ZI-1191  Hequinu joaloly

uolypAs J0ay pasodold

@y Bumoig

4o gan ‘sBpugxn
Ao Bn0i Z1L ag

JUDI) O UDIOd PUD USISIBAUDD)
ooy "ucisuayxg Ioey Aaioys H128loly
B|BuIS ‘UOEUSIKT SRIS ABIOIS OMm]

[Pung Aus) v usD

LLOZIPOIVE patiney Busuod| €

L10Z/20/90 pasney Buwuol| z

LI0E/10/02 anss| Buuoyd | |
ajeg uoydyasag .

‘B U paanbey 5 ADu S0 BLIDING USBSBICHUN IDUCIIPED

L2 SO PUD sucDINBay Buming JUSLND B4} Yjim SOUBRIDI00 Ul IS0 04UeD
BUpEng AUouny 19307 84 JO UCHIDISYOS BU) Of PAIBIIWOS 80 0f 1owm BUPINg IIv
UCHDUARIG D 4588 Pun Apau pode s8|SuBsIuo S|

1O S50 U] SH0M JO JUBLBTUBLIWIOD 0) 50Ud BJIS UD DEYDIEYD 8 O) SUDEUBLID |
"B DIPNIS SUCIISEYDNY |0 JUSSUOD USiUm 5000 BU) INouIs pod Uy 1o

BOLM U PEONROICEN X0 PEYILISUDY BESN 80 joU ADL PUD B GIBNS HUC|S8 Y=
18 Ausdond Sioad © 5 ULIM PAUIDIUGD USHOULSIUN SU) DU JNSAD] SL

LBOISIABE BLUDS BY) JO SUCHDIYIDEdS

SEHOPAUSS S0P SHUMDID ISUI0 IO Ui UDNSLNIOD U DO3) 54 150 Busmaip syl
sajoN

AN 0D OIPNISIIUBIIBHYDID" MMM
AT OD QIPNISOIUCI28 IGO0l 13
FRFOCFS 1FL0 TI9L
AN-UOPUOT "VE M1DM
12815 1B|SB0NTID PIO £

Qapris
SUOoajILD)y 7 g

051
uoljeas|3 Jeay pasodoid mD

(ysiuy jow)
Buljsixa SO Usii papusy

|ousoWw pun

B4y Ul Buysxe YD|oLw Of MopuLsm
¢ J00p pazo|b a|gnop maN
SMOPUIM ||© 0} BuzD|D Ajajog

mopu JuSIAAg

0zie

HEHHHHHHHHHEHHHH

Buysa auy
YODW 0} 53]} JOOY MaN

(ysiuy How)
Buijsie so ysiuy papusy

Buysie suy)
Y20W 0f sall jooy maN

HHHHEHHHHEHE

smopUim JUBIHAYS

Page 105




we L [i] £ ‘B Lo PEANDE) B ADW 0w BUIDING UBBSBIOJUN IDUOIPPT o )
) 05z | 401 gan ‘sBpugxn 4205 50 pUD sucyDINBay BUDINg JUSLND U Wi SIUDRIOII0 U| B0 I04U0T AN O CIPNYSIUCIIBHY D MMM
£V @ 0I5 Py - s Buppng AJuoujny [0007 SU J0 UCYDDIYDS By} O} PaeIdwoD 8g O} Yiowm Buppng v T OD OIPN|SIIUC)IBIYDIDEO)U 13
DM SA0ID ZL 25 UCHDULIUOD §55% PUD AIDIDSWE 008 ‘S8|DUS|FSUa U] FRFOEKS 1P L0 8L
m _. _. < v :AQ pausayd o :AQ pauBisag 1O S50 U] SH0M JO JUBLBTUBLIWIOD 0) 50Ud BJIS UD DEYDIEYD 8 O) SUDEUBLID | WN-UOPUCT 'KYE N1OM
M O nsd PUBLOReAO) & W18 PO b POl e 2 10U AU D B SRS SAXIOm Y 3545 J81S8ON0ID PIO 42
: . oy Buiul Lisn 8 i Jou UD PJ CHDNIS i
£102 Alonuor @jng L9 egquinu joafold 100y ‘uoisuBL 108Y Adiojs HH28l0Nd | [£L0L/VOIVE u&._., c - old| € 10 ALSHOXS SIDAD D § Uil PRUIDIUGD USHOULOJU! BU| PUD INGAD] Sy
B|BUIS "UOEUSPG SPIS ABIOIS OM] £102/20/90 pasney e wudld| Z SOIINBI BLUDS B} JO SUCHDOYIBGS § opris
. LI0E/10/0Z anss| Buucyd | | SHNPAYSS SEOIOP SEUMDID IO IO Uit UOISUNILGD Ul POSI 84 1501 Butsoip 5wy g
uoiypasg apis hr_@_m_ U@mOQDbu_ @] Bumoig |ong Ausy W HusID s ToHamEag o8 Caata Juooalio)y

0501 :
uoneas|3 apIs by pasodoid Qu

IRIRININ

i

I AL

Page 106




we L 0 0501 R .
B — "0 CIPNYSDIUOIIBHLDID MMM
Y @ 8005 40 _Mb MW%M“M_._J “aiig m...m..\:.m..ﬁ_mm_w_w 1oc v__u._,.oo.o_U.U:LULMWE&M;M&QL 3
O _. —. < o Ag payoayD o AQ psuBisag } 10 85D U "SHOM JO JUBMLBIUBLILCT 0} 2000 BYS UO PEBY3EYD 84 O} 9 V.D,_M_Mv%cmm _”“_.__M __l_m__n.u_i
U O UZIO4 PUD UDEIBAUOD . E— i z LD O JUBSUOD Lsjium sond a4 inou) 188115 JBISBIN0ID PIO) 22
£10Z Alonuop :ajog ZI-1191  equinu joalold 100) ‘UCISUD|XT 108y Aasoys Ho9log | [LLOT/ROVE patinay Buuuold| € BI0UM _un._u..“_g.u”whw_x_.n_wv,wﬂ___ﬁwa '
i B|BuIS ‘UOEUSIKT SRIS ABIOIS OMm] L10Z/Z0/%0 ummv“”w M._ c”cME, Z - o oy opris g
| uoyossg pasodold e Bumoig joIuDq Ausy I HUSID h,cm___u”w_.__uom .._o__n__w»m:n_r: id ..Mu SHPPAYSS S0P SBUIMOID FBUID I LM LI SNk oD S SUoPSLDNY
0S:1 ~~
/_.\
.
]
ue|d 1004 punols) mr_zm_xm 00 » / \ b KT " T " ] &4
-3
1 1 1l
W Vi AN 8 I _ I _ 'plls
S1 S———
4 N —
il I I IE<H
NOI NNOT I
Naho % ClLd3D3y JONNO 4 <] S
1 \ / & bl B
% \ / S i
P \ / ' il
1 sl
I b N~
P b4 o
b b4 % A
a o ; o
\ = Q)
/{‘ ue|d 100|4 isii4 mr__ﬁm_xm K] N ; \ b a
w / \ 9
X1 € WOO¥a33 / N | WOO¥a3g b4
1 -
& b
1 b4
1 b
b4
" b4

.w 05955 %
ue|d Joo|4 yo Bunsixg go 15503 5pun

.‘ £€.c8
jooy Bunsix37¢0




Car Park

Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH

Site boundary OF HILLINGDON

e e : 12 Grove Way Residents Services

or identification purposes only. Planning Section
This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Servi tt tion 47 of th ; . ’

M iy gl Planning Application Ref: Scale:
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act). 71844/APP/2017/329 1:1,250
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date:
© Crown copyright and database A | 201 7
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey ri
ity Central & Seyth 10s (Y s




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 10 CLAYTON ROAD HAYES

Development: Change of use from retail (Use Class A1) to car hire/mini cab office (Sui
Generis)

LBH Ref Nos: 72438/APP/2016/4505

Date Plans Received:  16/12/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 16/12/0016
Date Application Valid: 09/01/2017

Central & South Planning Committee - 16th May 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 109



Site Plan shows area bounded by: 509626.76, 179473.44 500770.18, 179614.86 (et a scale of 1:1250) The representation of a road, track or path is no evidence of a right of way. The representation of
features as lines is no evidence of a property boundary.

Page 110



D P,
D /_o);!.
"

@%

PLANMNING
Partner

o

1k Buy A Plan

UK's Fastest and Easiest Planning Site

10 Clayton Road, Hayes, UB3 1AZ

\ ;,/ JRTY

e

Pl S i !!
Sheringham Court

e )

——=__ll

o/

I
| I {
i | !
—e | | {
| ] N | | _—_—
| | F il | o == |
I .' I | R | /
: - | 1 J_ i 'I L I { /
| i =+ {
om | | 100m | | 200m | | /
i 0 Grown Gopikiht and alabase rght 2016 Oninanos Slirvey 10053143

Block Plan shows area bounded by: 509648 9, 179503.1 509738.9, 179593.1 (at a scale of 1:500) The representation of a road, track or path is no evidence of a right of way. The representation of

features as lines is no evidence of a property boundary.
Produced on 16th Dec 2016 from the Ordnance Survey National Geographic Database and incorporating surveyed revision available at this date. Reproduction in whole or part is prohibited without the
prior permission of Ordnance Survey. ® Crown copyright 2016. Supplied by www.buyaplan.co.uk a licensed Ordnance Survey partner (100053143). Unique plan reference: #00178967-DC8ESB

Ordnance Survey and the OS Symbol are registered trademarks of Ordnance Survey, the national mapping agency of Great Britain. Buy A Plan logo, pdf design and the www.buyaplan.co.uk website

are Copyright @ Pass Inc Ltd 2016

Page 111



POt/ 91/21/62 WNd/E/601/PP04 uosdoiasg on

=B34y JUI O AD|340 U JO4 ISN O}
Woad wouy asn jo aBuoys pasodoug

2wl EEN ‘Sakuy’pooy uoiind gf

USRTASS JuDdy pasodoJd

wa0g pandde aq e uwopoiydde ajyvucdas
‘uspta3Eny o 3Enf 8| uojjoass pasodosd u UGS Buy

UOIIUABIS U044 ONILSIING

8 oN

umid S00)d PasOdoLd

SV

wOL0r

N g i

ueid Jooyy Buisioxg

“OLO¥

Page 112



.\ 7
i of

ST W
- . -,“‘ .
// X
R 110 48 el
,’, .. ) =% Sheringham Cou I'i 7
- . 'S
| - SOCI S
32.9m

. o -
i

iy ‘-‘EZ Tl
O [ A
. !ﬂi’m |

s

Ll 'IH

Vantage

e 4 S N s ,
B R L ; 3 RREE,
'“-f—*—-,n,_,“7_31‘_'”[.“_73\':&”ROAD el i . | ;o Building |
e N " L)
g
s g |
= LY
T
-
1<
L=z
; ' 9
‘ =
LS 2
S 1
&, S
i ; 2 7%
. Shelters 5 e !
B s MR i < R 7 ol i
- - T = = — ‘ % E [Riaieat e mmm— T
e e e =S . . i ;
E— o * ‘o . e
\\\\\ e MP 11 ,/ Hayes and Harlington
EER s K i e e ———
s ] Station

Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Notes
Site boundary
. 10 Clayton Road Residents Services
For identification purposes only. Planning Section
This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the . . ’
b Planning Application Ref:

Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act). 72438/APP/2016/4505

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright. Planning Committee:

© Crown copyright and database
Central & Sopifhe 113

rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Scale:

1:1,250

Date:
April 2017 TrILLIIN




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 114



	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting
	6 31 Morello Avenue, Hillingdon - 72026/APP/2017/1064
	7 1 Normans Close, Hillingdon - 62184/APP/2016/4117
	8 12 Grove Way, Uxbridge - 71844/APP/2017/329
	9 10 Clayton Road, Hayes - 72438/APP/2016/4505
	10 ENFORCEMENT REPORT
	11 ENFORCEMENT REPORT
	PART I - Plans for Central and South Planning Committee

